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UNITED STATES
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION
Washington, D.C. 20549

FORM 8-K/A
(AMENDMENT No. 1)
CURRENT REPORT
Pursuant to Section 13 or 15(d) of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934
Date of Report (Date of earliest event reported): April 4, 2017

INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
(Exact Name of Registrant as Specified in Charter)

Delaware
(State or other jurisdiction of incorporation)

0-12695
(Commission File Number)

94-2669985
(IRS Employer Identification No.)

6024 Silver Creek Valley Road, San Jose, California 95138
(Address of principal executive offices) (Zip Code)

(408) 284-8200
Registrant's telephone number, including area code

Not Applicable
(Former name or former address, if changed since last report)
Check the appropriate box below if the Form 8-K filing is intended to simultaneously satisfy the filing obligation of the registrant under any of the following
provisions:
¨

Written communications pursuant to Rule 425 under the Securities Act (17 CFR 230.425)

¨

Soliciting material pursuant to Rule 14a-12 under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14a-12)

¨

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 14d-2(b) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.14d-2(b))

¨

Pre-commencement communications pursuant to Rule 13e-4(c) under the Exchange Act (17 CFR 240.13e-4(c))

Explanatory Note
On April 4, 2017, Integrated Device Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“IDT”), completed its previously announced acquisition of GigPeak, Inc., a
Delaware corporation ("GigPeak"), pursuant to the terms of the definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 13, 2017, by and among IDT,
Glider Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of IDT, and GigPeak.
This Amendment No. 1 on Form 8-K/A (“Amendment No. 1”) is being filed to amend Item 9.01 (a) and (b) of the Current Report on Form 8-K, filed by IDT
on April 4, 2017 (the “Original Form 8-K”), to include the audited consolidated financial statements of GigPeak as of and for the years ended December 31, 2016
and 2015, and the unaudited pro forma financial statements required by Item 9.01 (a) and (b), respectively, of Form 8-K, which consolidated financial statements
and information were not included in the Original Form 8-K.
This Amendment No. 1 effects no other changes to the Original Form 8-K and the consolidated financial statements of GigPeak filed herewith are the same
form as originally filed in its Annual Report on Form 10-K for the year ended December 31, 2016. The consolidated financial statements of GigPeak and pro forma
financial statements described in Item 9.01 below should be read in conjunction with the Original Form 8-K and this Amendment No.1.
Item 9.01. Financial Statements and Exhibits.
(a)

Financial Statements of Business Acquired
The audited consolidated financial statements of GigPeak for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 as required by this Item 9.01 (a) are attached as
Exhibit 99.2 hereto and incorporated by reference herein.
The Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, issued by BPM LLP, dated March 15, 2017, relating to GigPeak’s audited consolidated
financial statements described above, is attached hereto as Exhibit 99.3 and incorporated herein by reference.

(b)

Pro Forma Financial Statements
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements for IDT, after giving effect to the acquisition of GigPeak and adjustments described in
such pro forma financial statements, are attached hereto as Exhibit 99.4 and incorporated by reference herein.

(c)

Exhibits

Exhibit
Number

Description

23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, BPM LLP

99.2

Audited consolidated financial statements of GigPeak as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2016 and the notes related thereto

99.3

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, issued by BPM LLP, dated March 15, 2017

99.4

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of April 2, 2017, and Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of
Operations for the year ended April 2, 2017

SIGNATURE
Pursuant to the requirements of the Securities Exchange Act of 1934, as amended, the registrant has duly caused this report to be signed on its behalf by the
undersigned hereunto duly authorized.
Date: June 15, 2017
INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
By:

/s/ Brian C. White
Brian C. White
Senior Vice President, Chief Financial Officer
(Principal Financial and Accounting Officer)

EXHIBIT INDEX
Exhibit
Number

Description

23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, BPM LLP

99.2

Audited consolidated financial statements of GigPeak as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for each of the years in the two-year period ended
December 31, 2016 and the notes related thereto

99.3

Report of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm, issued by BPM LLP, dated March 15, 2017

99.4

Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet as of April 2, 2017, and Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of
Operations for the year ended April 2, 2017

Exhibit 23.1

Consent of Independent Registered Public Accounting Firm
We hereby consent to the incorporation by reference in Registration Statements on Form S-8 (Nos. 333-218123, 333-217128, 333-194629, 333-189936, 333170748, 333-160687, 333-160501, 333-154776, 333-149751, 333-138205, 333-131423, 333-128376, 333-122231, 333-112148, 333-100978, 333-61742, 33359162, 333-42446, 333-35124, 333-77559, 333-64279, 333-45245, 333-36601, 033-63133, and 033-54937) of Integrated Device Technology, Inc. of our report
dated March 15, 2017 relating to the consolidated financial statements of GigPeak, Inc. as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 and for each of the two years in the
period ended December 31, 2016, which appears in this Current Report on Form 8-K/A of Integrated Device Technology, Inc.
/s/ BPM LLP
San Jose, California
June 15, 2017

Exhibit 99.2
GIGPEAK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEETS
(In thousands, except share and per share amounts)
December 31,
2016

2015

ASSETS
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

35,757

$

30,245

Accounts receivable, net

15,258

10,596

Inventories

13,687

6,880

658

580

65,360

48,301

3,840

3,133

Intangible assets, net

26,717

4,530

Goodwill

42,977

12,565

87

330

1,454

251

Prepaid and other current assets
Total current assets
Property and equipment, net

Restricted cash
Other assets
Total assets

$

140,435

$

69,110

$

7,093

$

3,659

LIABILITIES AND STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation

3,166

1,782

Note payable, current

2,898

—

Other current liabilities

2,872

2,219

16,029

7,660

345

349

9,853

—

Total current liabilities
Pension liabilities
Note payable, net of current portion
Other long term liabilities

3,896

912

30,123

8,921

Preferred stock, $0.001 par value; 1,000,000 shares authorized; no shares issued and outstanding as of December 31,
2016 and 2015, respectively

—

—

Common stock, $0.001 par value; 100,000,000 shares authorized; 68,857,716 and 45,221,397 shares issued and
outstanding as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

69

45

213,557

163,036

Total liabilities
Commitments and contingencies (Note 8)
Stockholders’ equity:

Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock, at cost; 1,781,142 and 701,754 shares as of December 31, 2016 and 2015

(4,972)

Accumulated other comprehensive income

(2,209)

440

Accumulated deficit

332

(98,782)

Total stockholders’ equity

(101,015)

110,312

Total liabilities and stockholders’ equity

$
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

140,435

60,189
$

69,110

GIGPEAK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF OPERATIONS
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Revenue

$

Cost of revenue

2015

58,743

$

40,394

18,730

14,898

40,013

25,496

Research and development

20,314

12,955

Selling, general and administrative

16,336

11,127

36,650

24,082

Gross profit
Operating expenses:

Total operating expenses
Income from operations

3,363

1,414

Interest expense, net

674

19

Other expense, net

217

76

2,472

1,319

239

67

2,233

1,252

—

3

Income before provision for income taxes
Provision for income taxes
Income from consolidated companies
Loss on equity investment
Net income

$

2,233

$

1,249

Net income per share—basic

$

0.04

$

0.03

Net income per share—diluted

$

0.04

$

0.03

Weighted-average number of shares used in basic net income per share calculations

58,713

36,624

Weighted-average number of shares used in diluted net income per share calculations

61,412

38,114

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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GIGPEAK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Net income

$

2015
2,233

$

1,249

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Foreign currency translation adjustment

80

32

Change in pension liability in connection with actuarial gain

28

15

108

47

Other comprehensive income, net of tax
Comprehensive income

$
See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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2,341

$

1,296

GIGPEAK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY
(In thousands, except share amounts)
Common Stock

Shares
Balance as of December 31,
2014
Stock-based compensation

33,112,086

Treasury Stock

Amount
$

Shares

32

701,754

Additional
Paid-In
Capital

Amount
$ (2,209)

$

143,661

Accumulated Other
Comprehensive
Income
$

285

Total
Stockholder's
Equity

Accumulated
Deficit
$

(102,264)

$

39,505

—

—

—

—

3,848

—

—

3,848

Issuance of common stock in
connection with exercise of
options

226,464

1

—

—

376

—

—

377

Issuance of restricted stock to
employees, net of taxes paid
related to net share settlement
of equity awards

1,239,847

1

—

—

(1,288)

—

—

(1,287)

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the public
offering, net of issuance costs

10,643,000

11

—

—

16,439

—

—

16,450

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

—

—

—

—

—

32

—

32

Change in pension liability in
connection with actuarial loss,
net of tax

—

—

—

—

—

15

—

15

Net income

—

—

—

—

—

—

1,249

1,249

45,221,397

45

701,754

163,036

332

Balance as of December 31,
2015
Stock-based compensation

(2,209)

(101,015)

60,189

—

—

—

—

4,587

—

—

4,587

Issuance of common stock in
connection with exercise of
options

454,526

—

—

—

727

—

—

727

Issuance of restricted stock to
employees, net of taxes paid
related to net share settlement
of equity awards

1,242,111

2

—

—

(1,721)

—

—

(1,719)

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the public
offering, net of issuance costs

13,194,643

13

—

—

24,280

—

—

24,293

Issuance of common stock in
connection with the private
equity placement, net of
issuance costs

1,754,385

2

—

—

4,616

—

—

4,618

Issuance of common stock in
connection with Magnum
acquisition, net of shares
returned for net working
capital adjustment

6,990,654

7

1,079,388

17,889

—

—

15,133

Incremental fair value of
warrants modified in
connection with SVB credit
facilities

—

—

—

—

143

—

—

143

Foreign currency translation
adjustment, net of tax

—

—

—

—

—

80

—

80

Change in pension liability in
connection with actuarial loss,
net of tax

—

—

—

—

—

28

—

28

Net income

—

—

—

—

—

—

2,233

2,233

69

1,781,142

Balance as of December 31,
2016

68,857,716

$

(2,763)

$ (4,972)

$

213,557

$

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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440

$

(98,782)

$

110,312

GIGPEAK, INC.
CONSOLIDATED STATEMENTS OF CASH FLOWS
(In thousands)
Years Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Cash flows from operating activities:
Net income

$

2,233

$

1,249

Adjustments to reconcile net income to net cash provided by operating activities:
Depreciation and amortization

6,152

3,595

Stock-based compensation

4,587

3,848

Change in fair value of warrants

(30)

31

Amortization of debt discount

94

—

Loss on equity investment

—

3

Provision for doubtful accounts

19

14

Changes in operating assets and liabilities:
Accounts receivable

(3,635)

(2,655)

Inventories

(5,055)

(1,741)

(740)

(1,238)

Prepaid and other current assets
Other assets

8

Accounts payable

(51)

2,236

Accrued compensation

(135)

183

Other current liabilities

1,023

(2,525)

Other long-term liabilities

(1,051)

(273)

Net cash provided by operating activities

65

3,254

2,957

(35,443)

(4,425)

Cash flows from investing activities:
Acquisition, net of cash acquired
Purchases of long-term investment

(1,200)

Purchases of property and equipment

(2,139)

Change in restricted cash

—
(2,106)

241

Net cash used in investing activities

(213)

(38,541)

(6,744)

24,273

16,450

7,100

—

14,800

—

4,618

—

Cash flows from financing activities:
Proceeds from public offering of stock, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from revolving loan
Proceeds from term loan, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from private offering of stock, net of issuance costs
Proceeds from exercise of stock options

727

377

Taxes paid related to net share settlement of equity awards

(1,719)

Repayments on term loan

(2,000)

—

Repayments on revolving loan

(7,100)

—

Repayments on capital lease

(20)

Net cash provided by financing activities
Effect of exchange rates on cash and cash equivalents
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents
Cash and cash equivalents at beginning of year
Cash and cash equivalents at end of year

(1,287)

(4 )

40,679

15,536

120

58

5,512

11,807

30,245

18,438

$

35,757

$

30,245

Interest paid

$

654

$

23

Taxes paid

$

117

$

15

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information:

5

Supplemental disclosure of non-cash investing and financing information:
Issuance of common stock in conjunction with acquisition

$

15,133

$

—

Purchase of property and equipment included in accounts payable

$

632

$

625

Offering costs included in accounts payable and other current liabilities

$

12

$

32

Incremental fair value of warrants modified in connection with SVB credit facilities

$

143

$

—

See accompanying Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements
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GIGPEAK, INC.
NOTES TO CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
NOTE 1—ORGANIZATION AND BASIS OF PRESENTATION
Organization
GigPeak, Inc. (“GigPeak” or the “Company”), formerly known as GigOptix, Inc. until the second quarter of 2016, is a leading innovator of semiconductor
integrated circuits (“ICs”) and software solutions for high-speed connectivity and high-quality video compression. The Company’s focus is to develop and deliver
products that enable lower power consumption, higher quality information video content and faster data connectivity, more efficient use of network infrastructure
and broader connectivity to the Cloud, reducing the total cost of ownership for the network’s operators. GigPeak addresses both the speed of data transmission and
the amount of bandwidth the data consumes within the network, while enhancing the streamed and broadcasted content quality, and its products also help to
improve the efficiency of various Cloud-connected enterprise applications. The GigPeak product portfolio provides flexibility to support on-going changes in the
connectivity that customers and markets require by deploying a wider offering of solutions from various kinds of semiconductor materials, ICs and Multi-ChipModules (“MCMs”), through cost-effective application-specific-integrated-circuits (“ASICs”) and system-on-chips (“SoCs”), and into full software programmable
open-platform offerings.
The Company was formed as a Delaware corporation in March 2008 in order to facilitate a combination between GigOptix LLC and Lumera Corporation
(“Lumera”). Since inception, the Company has expanded its customer base through its sales and marketing activities, and by acquiring and integrating eight (8)
companies with complementary and synergistic products and customers. GigPeak established a worldwide direct sales force which is supported by a number of
channel representatives and distributors that sell its products throughout North America, Europe and Asia.
On February 13, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Integrated Device Technology, Inc.
(“IDT”) and IDT’s Wholly-owned subsidiary Glider Merger sub, Inc. (the “Purchaser”), Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Purchaser made a tender
offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common and associated purchase rights for the Company’s Series A Junior Preferred Stock,
(the “Shares”) on March 7, 2017 (the “Offer”). The Offer is scheduled to expire one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight ) New York Time, on Monday
April 3, 2017, unless the Offer is extended or terminated. See Note 14- Subsequent Events.
Basis of Presentation
The Company’s fiscal year ends on December 31. The consolidated financial statements include the accounts of the Company and its wholly owned
subsidiaries. All significant intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliminated.
Use of Estimates
The preparation of consolidated financial statements in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America (“US
GAAP”) requires management to make estimates, judgments and assumptions that affect the reported amount of assets and liabilities, disclosure of contingent
assets and liabilities at the date of the financial statements, and the reported amounts of revenue and expenses during the reported periods. Such estimates include,
but are not limited to, allowances for doubtful accounts, reserves for stock rotation rights, warranty accrual, inventory write-downs, fair value of acquired
intangible assets and goodwill, assumptions used in the valuation of stock-based awards and common stock warrants, valuation of deferred taxes and
contingencies. Actual results could differ from these estimates.
Certain Significant Risks and Uncertainties
The Company operates in a dynamic industry and, accordingly, its business can be affected by a variety of factors. For example, changes in any of the
following areas could have a negative effect in terms of its future financial position, results of operations or cash flows: a downturn in the overall semiconductor
industry or communications semiconductor market; regulatory changes; fundamental changes in the technology underlying telecom products or incorporated in
customers’ products; market acceptance of its products under development; litigation or other claims against the Company; litigation or other claims made by the
Company; the hiring, training and retention of key employees; integration of businesses acquired; successful and timely completion of product development
efforts; and new product introductions by competitors.
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Fair Value of Financial Instruments
The Company’s financial instruments consist primarily of cash and cash equivalents, accounts receivable, accounts payable, accrued compensation, other
accrued liabilities, common stock warrant liability, term loan and capital lease obligations.
The Company regularly reviews its investment portfolio to identify and evaluate investments that have indications of possible impairment. Factors
considered in determining whether a loss is temporary include: the length of time and extent to which fair value has been lower than the cost basis; the financial
condition, credit quality and near-term prospects of the investee; and whether it is more likely than not that the Company will be required to sell the security prior
to any anticipated recovery in fair value. When there is no readily available market data, fair value estimates may be made by the Company, which may not
necessarily represent the amounts that could be realized in a current or future sale of these assets.
Revenue Recognition
The Company’s revenue is mainly derived from the following sources: (i) product revenue, which includes hardware, software and perpetual software
license revenue; (ii) services revenue, which include post contract support (“PCS”), professional services, and training; (iii) royalty revenue based on the number of
ICs the customers sold during a particular period by the agreed-upon royalty rate; and (iv) engineering project revenues associated with product development, nonrecurring engineering projects (“NRE”).
Revenue from sales of optical communication drivers and receivers and multi-chip modules, broadcasting SoCs for video broadcasting, distribution and
contribution applications, networking ICs and MCMs for high-speed information streaming, and other hardware and software products is recognized when
persuasive evidence of a sales arrangement exists, transfer of title occurs, the sales price is fixed or determinable and collection of the resulting receivable is
reasonably assured. The Company generally provides a standard product warranty on its products and warranty reserves are made at the time revenue is recorded.
See Note 8-Commitments and Contingencies for further detail related to the warranty reserve.
Customer purchase orders are generally used to determine the existence of an arrangement. Transfer of title and risk of ownership occur based on defined
terms in customer purchase orders, and generally pass to the customer upon shipment, at which point goods are delivered to a carrier. There are no formal customer
acceptance terms or further obligations, outside of a standard product warranty. The Company assesses whether the sales price is fixed or determinable based on
the payment terms associated with the transaction. Collectibility is assessed based primarily on the credit worthiness of the customer as determined through
ongoing credit evaluations of the customer’s financial condition as well as consideration of the customer’s payment history.
The Company sells some products to distributors at the price listed in its price book for that distributor. Certain of the Company’s distributor agreements
provide for semi-annual stock rotation privileges of 5% to 10% of net sales for the previous six-month period. At the time of sale, the Company records a sales
reserve against revenues for stock rotations approved by management. Each month the Company adjusts the sales reserve for the estimated stock rotation privilege
anticipated to be utilized by the distributors. When the distributors pay the Company’s invoices, they may claim stock rotations when appropriate. Once claimed,
the Company processes the requests against the prior authorizations and reduces the reserve previously established for that customer. As of December 31, 2016,
and 2015, the reserve for stock rotations was $283,000 and $490,000, respectively, and is recorded in other current liabilities in the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company records transaction-based taxes including, but not limited to, sales, use, value added, and excise taxes, on a net basis in its consolidated
statements of operations.
Service revenue includes customer support services, primarily software maintenance contract services and professional services. Revenue from service
contracts is recognized ratably over the contract term, generally ranging from one to three years. Professional services, such as training services, are offered under
time and material or fixed-fee contracts. Professional services revenue is recognized as services are performed.
The Company recognizes royalty revenue based on reports received from customers during the quarter, assuming that all other revenue recognition criteria
are met. The customers generally report shipment information typically within 45 days following the end of their respective quarters. If there is a reliable basis on
which the Company can estimate its royalty revenues prior to obtaining the customers’ reports, the Company will recognize royalty revenues in the quarter in
which they are earned. If there is not a reliable basis for estimating royalties, the Company will recognize revenue in the following quarter when the shipment
report is received.
8

The Company also enters in to product development arrangements with certain customers. In general, NRE projects require complex technology
development and achievement of the development milestones is dependent on the Company’s performance. The milestone payment is generally commensurate
with the Company’s effort or the value of the deliverable and is nonrefundable. Although development milestones are typically accepted by the customers, the
Company does not have certainty about its ability to achieve these milestones. As such, revenue from product development arrangements are recorded when
development milestones are achieved. These revenues are typically recorded at 100% gross margin because the costs associated with NRE projects are recorded in
research and development as expenses are incurred. The development efforts related to NRE projects generally benefit the Company’s overall product development
programs beyond the specific project requested by its customers.
Deferred Revenue
Deferred revenue primarily represents PCS contracts billed in advance but yet to be recognized. The current portion of deferred revenue represents the
amounts that are expected to be recognized as revenue within one year of the balance sheet date. As of December 31, 2016, the current portion of deferred revenue
of $928,000 is included in other current liabilities and the noncurrent portion of deferred revenue of $2.3 million is included in other long-term liabilities in the
consolidated balance sheets. As of December 31, 2015, there was no deferred revenue.
Accounts Receivable and Allowance for Doubtful Accounts
Accounts receivable are recorded at the invoiced amount and are not interest bearing. The Company maintains an allowance for doubtful accounts for
estimated losses resulting from the inability of its customers to make required payments. The Company makes ongoing assumptions relating to the collectibility of
its accounts receivable in its calculation of the allowance for doubtful accounts. In determining the amount of the allowance, the Company makes judgments about
the creditworthiness of customers based on ongoing credit evaluations and assesses current economic trends affecting its customers that might impact the level of
credit losses in the future and result in different rates of bad debts than previously seen. The Company also considers its historical level of credit losses. As of
December 31, 2016, the Company’s accounts receivable balance was $15.3 million, which was net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $77,000. As of
December 31, 2015, the Company’s accounts receivable balance was $10.6 million, which was net of an allowance for doubtful accounts of $63,000.
Cash and Cash Equivalents
The Company considers all highly liquid investments with an original maturity of 90 days or less at the date of purchase to be cash equivalents. Cash and
cash equivalents are maintained at various financial institutions.
Restricted Cash
Restricted cash as of December 31, 2016 was $87,000 which includes $36,000 in government subsidy funding for GTK which is primarily subject to
withdrawal restrictions to government-sponsored research and development projects and other activities, and a $51,000 security deposit held in an escrow account
related to the Company’s facility lease in Zurich, Switzerland. Restricted cash as of December 31, 2015 was $330,000 which includes $278,000 in government
subsidy funding for GTK, which is primarily subject to withdrawal restrictions to government-sponsored research and development projects and other activities,
and a $53,000 security deposit held in an escrow account related to the Company’s facility lease in Zurich, Switzerland.
Concentration of Credit Risk
Financial instruments that potentially subject the Company to significant concentrations of credit risk consist primarily of cash, cash equivalents, and
accounts receivable. The Company maintains cash and cash equivalents with various financial institutions that management believes to be of high credit quality. At
any time, amounts held at any single financial institution may exceed federally insured limits. The Company believes that the concentration of credit risk in its
accounts receivable is substantially mitigated by its credit evaluation process, relatively short collection terms and the high level of credit worthiness of its
customers. The Company performs ongoing credit evaluations of its customers’ financial condition and limits the amount of credit extended when deemed
necessary but generally requires no collateral.
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As of December 31, 2016, two customers accounted for 16% and 16% of total accounts receivable. As of December 31, 2015 five customers accounted for
20%, 19%, 13%, 12% and 11% of total accounts receivable.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, no customer accounted for 10% or more of total revenue. For the year ended December 31, 2015, four customers
accounted for 23%, 16%, 11% and 10% of total revenue.
Concentration of Supply Risk
The Company relies on third parties to manufacture its products, and depends on them for the supply and quality of its products. Quality or performance
failures of the Company’s products or changes in its manufacturers’ financial or business condition could disrupt the Company’s ability to supply quality products
to its customers and thereby have a material and adverse effect on its business and operating results. Some of the components and technologies used in the
Company’s products are purchased and licensed from a single source or a limited number of sources. The loss of any of these suppliers may cause the Company to
incur additional transition costs, result in delays in the manufacturing and delivery of its products, or cause it to carry excess or obsolete inventory or redesign its
products. The Company relies on a third party for the fulfillment of its customer orders, and the failure of this third party to perform could have an adverse effect
upon the Company’s reputation and its ability to distribute its products, which could adversely affect the Company’s business.
Inventories
Inventories are stated at the lower of standard cost, which approximates actual cost on a first-in, first-out basis, or market (net realizable value). Cost
includes labor, material and overhead costs. Determining fair market value of inventories involves numerous judgments, including projecting average selling prices
and sales volumes for future periods and costs to complete products in work-in-process inventories. As a result of this analysis, when fair market values are below
costs, the Company records a charge to cost of revenue in advance of when the inventory is scrapped or sold.
The Company evaluates its ending inventories for excess quantities and obsolescence on a quarterly basis. This evaluation includes analysis of historical and
forecasted sales levels by product against inventories on-hand. Inventories on-hand in excess of estimated future demand are reviewed by management to
determine if a write-down is required. In addition, the Company writes-off inventories that are considered obsolete. Obsolescence is determined from several
factors, including competitiveness of product offerings, market conditions and product life cycles when determining obsolescence. Excess and obsolete inventories
are charged to cost of revenue and a new, lower-cost basis for that inventory is established and subsequent changes in facts and circumstances do not result in the
restoration or increase in that newly established cost basis.
The Company’s inventories include high-technology parts that may be subject to rapid technological obsolescence and which are sold in a highly
competitive industry. If actual product demand or selling prices are less favorable than forecasted amounts, the Company may be required to take additional
inventory write-downs.
Property and Equipment, net
Property and equipment, including leasehold improvements, are recorded at cost and depreciated using the straight-line method over their estimated useful
lives, ranging from one to seven years. Leasehold improvements and assets acquired under capital leases are depreciated over the shorter of their estimated useful
lives or the remaining lease term of the respective assets. Repairs and maintenance costs are charged to expenses as incurred.
Business Combination
The Company applied the purchase method of accounting to its acquisitions. Under this method, all assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded at
their respective fair values at the date of the completion of the transaction. Determining the fair value of assets acquired and liabilities assumed requires
management’s judgment and often involves the use of significant estimates and assumptions, including assumptions with respect to future cash inflows and
outflows, discount rates, intangibles and other asset lives, among other items. Fair value is defined as the price that would be received in a sale of an asset or paid
to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date (an exit price). Market participants are assumed to be buyers
and sellers in the principal (most advantageous) market for the asset or liability. Additionally, fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use
of that asset by market participants. As a result, the Company may have been required to value the
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acquired assets at fair value measurements that do not reflect its intended use of those assets. Use of different estimates and judgments could yield different results.
Any excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net assets acquired is recognized as goodwill.
The accounting for the acquisition of Magnum Semiconductor, Inc. (“Magnum”) is based on currently available information. Although the Company
believes that the assumptions and estimates made are reasonable and appropriate, they are based in part on historical experience and information that may be
obtained from management of the acquired company and are inherently uncertain. Unanticipated events and circumstances may occur that may affect the accuracy
or validity of such assumptions, estimates, or actual results. As a result, during the measurement period, which may be up to one year from the acquisition date, the
Company may record adjustments to the assets acquired and liabilities assumed with the corresponding offset to goodwill. Upon the conclusion of the
measurement period or final determination of the values of assets acquired or liabilities assumed, whichever comes first, any subsequent adjustments will be
recorded in the Company’s consolidated statements of operations.
Long-lived Assets and Intangible Assets, net
Long-lived assets include equipment, furniture and fixtures, licenses, leasehold improvements, semiconductor masks used in production and intangible
assets. When events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount of long-lived assets may not be recoverable, the Company tests for
recoverability by comparing the estimate of undiscounted cash flows to be generated by the assets against the assets’ carrying amount. If the carrying value
exceeds the estimated future cash flows, the assets are considered to be impaired. The amount of impairment equals the difference between the carrying amount of
the assets and their fair value. Factors the Company considers important that could trigger an impairment review include continued operating losses, significant
negative industry trends, significant underutilization of the assets and significant changes in how it plans to use the assets.
Finite-lived intangible assets resulting from business acquisitions or technology licenses are amortized on a straight-line basis over their estimated economic
lives of six to seven years for developed technology, acquired in business combinations; sixteen years for patents acquired in business combinations, based on the
term of the patent or the estimated useful life, whichever is shorter; one year for order backlog, acquired in business combinations; ten years for trade name,
acquired in business combinations; and six to eight years for customer relationships, acquired in business combinations. The assigned useful lives are consistent
with the Company’s historical experience with similar technology and other intangible assets owned by the Company.
In-process research and development (“IPR&D”) is recorded at fair value as of the date of acquisition as an indefinite-lived intangible asset until the
completion or abandonment of the associated research and development efforts or impairment. Upon completion of development, acquired in-process research and
development assets are transferred to finite-lived intangible assets and amortized over their useful lives. The Company reviews indefinite-lived intangible assets for
impairment on an annual basis in conjunction with goodwill or whenever events or changes in circumstances indicate the carrying value may not be recoverable.
Goodwill
Goodwill is recorded when the purchase price of an acquisition exceeds the fair value of the net purchased tangible and intangible assets acquired and is
carried at cost. Goodwill is not amortized, but is reviewed annually for impairment. The Company performs its annual goodwill impairment analysis in the fourth
quarter of each year or more frequently if it believes indicators of impairment exist. Factors that it considers important which could trigger an impairment review
include the following:
•
•
•
•

significant underperformance relative to historical or projected future operating results;
significant adverse change in the extent or manner in which a long-lived asset is being used or in its physical condition;
significant negative industry or economic trends; and
significant decline in the Company’s market capitalization.

When evaluating goodwill for impairment, the Company may initially perform a qualitative assessment which includes a review and analysis of certain
quantitative factors to estimate if a reporting units’ fair value significantly exceeds its carrying value. When the estimate of a reporting unit’s fair value appears
more likely than not to be less than its carrying value based on this qualitative assessment, the Company continues to the first step of a two-step impairment test.
The first step requires a comparison of the fair value of the reporting unit to its net book value, including goodwill. The fair value of the reporting units is
determined based on a weighting of income and market approaches. Under the income approach, the Company calculates the fair value of a reporting unit based on
the present value of estimated future cash flows. Under the market approach, the Company estimates the fair value based on market multiples of revenue or
earnings for comparable companies. Determining the fair value of a reporting unit is judgmental in nature and involves the use of significant estimates and
assumptions. These estimates and assumptions include revenue growth
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rates and operating margins used to calculate projected future cash flows, risk-adjusted discount rates, and future economic and market conditions and
determination of appropriate market comparables. The Company bases these fair value estimates on reasonable assumptions but that are unpredictable and
inherently uncertain. Actual future results may differ from those estimates. A potential impairment exists if the fair value of the reporting unit is lower than its net
book value. The second step of the process is only performed if a potential impairment exists, and it involves determining the difference between the fair values of
the reporting unit’s net assets, other than goodwill, and the fair value of the reporting unit, and, if the difference is less than the net book value of goodwill, an
impairment charge is recorded. In the event that the Company determines that the value of goodwill has become impaired, it will record a charge for the amount of
impairment during the fiscal quarter in which the determination is made. The Company operates in one reporting unit. The Company conducted its 2016 annual
goodwill impairment analysis in the fourth quarter of 2016 and no goodwill impairment was indicated.
Pension Liabilities
The Company maintains a defined benefit pension plan covering minimum requirements according to Swiss law for its Zurich, Switzerland employees. The
Company recognizes the funded status of its defined benefit pension plan on its consolidated balance sheets and changes in the funded status are reflected in
accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, a component of stockholders’ equity.
Net periodic pension costs are calculated based upon a number of actuarial assumptions, including a discount rate for plan obligations, assumed rate of
return on pension plan assets and assumed rate of compensation increases for plan employees. All of these assumptions are based upon management’s judgment,
considering all known trends and uncertainties. Actual results that differ from these assumptions would impact the future expense recognition and cash funding
requirements of its pension plans.
Foreign Currency
The financial position and results of operations of the Company’s foreign subsidiaries are measured using the local currency as their functional currency.
Accordingly, all assets and liabilities for these subsidiaries are translated into U.S. dollars at the current exchange rates as of the respective balance sheet date.
Revenue and expense items are translated at the average exchange rates prevailing during the period. Cumulative gains and losses from the translation of these
subsidiaries’ financial statements are reported as a separate component of accumulated other comprehensive income, net of tax, a component of stockholders’
equity. The Company records foreign currency transaction gains and losses, realized and unrealized, in other expense, net in the consolidated statements of
operations. The Company recorded approximately $80,000 and $32,000 of net transaction loss in 2016 and 2015, respectively.
Product Warranty
The Company’s products typically carry a standard warranty period of approximately one year which provides for the repair, rework or replacement of
products (at its option) that fail to perform within stated specification. The Company provides for the estimated cost to repair or replace the product at the time of
sale. The warranty accrual is estimated based on historical claims and assumes that it will replace products subject to claims.
Shipping Costs
The Company charges shipping costs to cost of revenue as incurred.
Research and Development Expense
Research and development expenses are expensed as incurred. Research and development expense consists primarily of salaries and related expenses for
research and development personnel, consulting and engineering design, non-capitalized tools and equipment, engineering related semiconductor masks,
depreciation for equipment, engineering expenses paid to outside technology development suppliers, allocated facilities costs and expenses related to stock-based
compensation.
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Advertising Expense
Advertising costs are expensed as incurred. Advertising expenses, which are recorded in selling, general and administrative expenses, were $5,000 for the
year ended December 31, 2016. The Company had no advertising expenses for the year ended December 31, 2015.
Stock-Based Compensation
Stock-based compensation for employees is measured at the date of grant, based on the fair value of the award. For options, the Company amortizes the
compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the option, which is generally the option vesting term of four years. For restricted
stock units (“RSUs”), the Company amortizes the compensation costs on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the RSU grant, which is generally
the vesting term of one to four years. The benefits of tax deductions in excess of recognized compensation expense are reported as a financing cash flows on the
consolidated statement of cash flows. All of the stock-based compensation is accounted for as equity instruments.
For options, the Company uses the Black-Scholes option-pricing model to measure the fair value of its stock-based awards utilizing various assumptions
with respect to expected holding period, risk-free interest rates, stock price volatility and dividend yield.
For RSUs, stock-based compensation is based on the fair value of the Company’s common stock at the grant date.
Management estimates expected forfeitures and records the stock-based compensation expense only for those equity awards expected to vest. When
estimating forfeitures, the Company considers voluntary termination behavior as well as an analysis of actual option forfeitures. Forfeitures are required to be
estimated at the time of grant and revised if necessary in subsequent periods if actual forfeitures or vesting differ from those estimates. Such revisions could have a
material effect on its operating results. The assumptions the Company uses in the valuation model are based on subjective future expectations combined with
management judgment. If any of the assumptions used in the Black-Scholes option-pricing model changes significantly, stock-based compensation for future
awards may differ materially compared to the awards granted previously.
Warrants
Warrants issued as equity awards are recorded based on the estimated fair value of the awards at the grant date. The Company uses the Black-Scholes
option-pricing model to measure the fair value of its equity warrant awards utilizing various assumptions with respect to expected holding period, risk-free interest
rates, stock price volatility and dividend yield.
Warrants with certain features, including down-round protection, are recorded as liability awards. These warrants are valued using a Black-Scholes optionpricing model which requires various assumptions with respect to expected holding period, risk-free interest rates, stock price volatility and dividend yield. The
warrants are re-measured each reporting period, and the change in the fair value of the liability is recorded as other expense, net, on the consolidated statements of
operations until the warrant is exercised or cancelled.
Net Income per Share
Basic net income per share is computed using the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding. Diluted net income per share is computed using
the weighted-average number of common shares outstanding and potentially dilutive common shares outstanding during the periods. The dilutive effect of
outstanding stock options, warrants, and RSUs is reflected in diluted earnings per share by application of the treasury stock method. For purposes of the diluted
earnings per share calculation, RSUs, stock options to purchase common stock and warrants to purchase common stock are considered to be dilutive securities.
Income Taxes
The provision for income taxes is determined using the asset and liability approach of accounting for income taxes. Under this approach, deferred taxes
represent the future tax consequences expected to occur when the reported amounts of assets and liabilities are recovered or paid. The provision for income taxes
represents income taxes paid or payable for the current year plus the change in deferred taxes during the year. Deferred taxes result from differences between the
financial and tax basis of the Company’s assets and
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liabilities and are adjusted for changes in tax rates and tax laws when changes are enacted. Valuation allowances are recorded to reduce deferred tax assets when it
is more likely than not that a tax benefit will not be realized.
The Company must assess the likelihood that the Company’s deferred tax assets will be recovered from future taxable income, and to the extent the
Company believes that recovery is not likely, the Company establishes a valuation allowance. Management judgment is required in determining the Company’s
provision for income taxes, deferred tax assets and liabilities, and any valuation allowance recorded against the net deferred tax assets. The Company recorded a
full valuation allowance as of December 31, 2016 and 2015. Based on the available evidence, the Company believes, it is more likely than not that it will not be
able to utilize its deferred tax assets in the future. The Company intends to maintain valuation allowances until sufficient evidence exists to support the reversal of
such valuation allowances. The Company makes estimates and judgments about its future taxable income that are based on assumptions that are consistent with its
plans. Should the actual amounts differ from the Company’s estimates, the carrying value of the Company’s deferred tax assets could be materially impacted.
The Company recognizes in the financial statements the impact of a tax position, if that position is more likely than not of being sustained on audit, based on
the technical merits of the position. The Company’s policy is to recognize interest and penalties accrued on any unrecognized tax benefits as a component of
income tax expense. The Company does not believe there are any tax positions for which it is reasonably possible that the total amounts of unrecognized tax
benefits will significantly increase or decrease within 12 months of the reporting date.
Comprehensive Income
Comprehensive income is comprised of two components: net income and other comprehensive income. Other comprehensive income refers to revenues,
expenses, gains and losses that under US GAAP are recorded as an element of stockholders’ equity, but are excluded from net income. Accumulated other
comprehensive income in the accompanying consolidated balance sheets includes foreign currency translation adjustments arising from the consolidation of the
Company’s foreign subsidiaries and its changes in pension liabilities. Comprehensive income is presented net of income tax and the tax impact is immaterial.
The components of accumulated other comprehensive income were as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2016

2015

Accumulated comprehensive income:
Foreign currency translation adjustment, net of tax

$

Change in pension liability in connection with actuarial gain, net of tax

410

$

30
$

Total accumulated other comprehensive income

440

330
2

$

332

Recent Accounting Pronouncements
In January 2017, the Financial Accounting Standards Board (“FASB”) issued Accounting Standards Update (“ASU”) No. 2017-01, Business Combinations
(Topic 805) to clarify the definition of a business to assist entities with evaluating whether transactions should be accounted for as acquisitions (or disposals) of
assets or businesses. The guidance is effective for fiscal years beginning after December 15, 2017 including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early
adoption is permitted under certain circumstances. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.
In January 2017, the FASB issued ASU No. 2017-04, Intangibles - Goodwill and Other (Topic 350) . ASU 2017-04 simplifies how an entity is required
to test goodwill for impairment by eliminating the Step 2 from the goodwill impairment test. Step 2 measures goodwill impairment loss by comparing the implied
fair value of a reporting unit's goodwill with the carrying amount of that goodwill. Under the amendments in ASU No. 2017-04, an entity should perform its annual
or interim goodwill impairment test by comparing the fair value of a reporting unit with its carrying amount and recognize an impairment charge for the amount by
which the carrying amount exceeds the reporting unit's fair value; however, that loss recognized should not exceed the total amount of goodwill allocated to that
reporting unit. ASU No. 2017-04 also requires an entity to consider income tax effects from any tax deductible goodwill on the carrying amount of the reporting
unit when measuring the goodwill impairment loss, if applicable. The guidance is effective for annual or interim goodwill impairment tests in fiscal years
beginning after December 15, 2019 including interim periods within those fiscal years. Early adoption is permitted. The Company is currently evaluating the
impact of the adoption of this standard.
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In November 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-18, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Restricted Cash , which requires that a statement of cash
flows explain the change during the period in the total cash, cash equivalents, and amounts generally described as restricted cash or restricted cash equivalents.
Therefore, amounts generally described as restricted cash and restricted cash equivalents should be included with cash and cash equivalents when reconciling the
beginning and ending balances shown on the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-18 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.
In August 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-15, Statement of Cash Flows (Topic 230): Classification of Certain Cash Receipts and Cash Payments.
ASU No. 2016-15 eliminates the diversity in practice related to the classification of certain cash receipts and payments for debt prepayment or extinguishment
costs, the maturing of a zero coupon bond, the settlement of contingent liabilities arising from a business combination, proceeds from insurance settlements,
distributions from certain equity method investees and beneficial interests obtained in a financial asset securitization. ASU No. 2016-15 designates the appropriate
cash flow classification, including requirements to allocate certain components of these cash receipts and payments among operating, investing and financing
activities. The retrospective transition method, requiring adjustment to all comparative periods presented, is required unless it is impracticable for some of the
amendments, in which case those amendments would be prospectively as of the earliest date practicable. ASU No. 2016-15 is effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.
In June 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-13, Financial Instruments - Credit Losses (Topic 326): Measurement of Credit Losses on Financial
Instruments , which requires entities to use a current expected credit loss (“CECL”) model which is a new impairment model based on expected losses rather than
incurred losses. Under this model an entity would recognize an impairment allowance equal to its current estimate of all contractual cash flows that the entity does
not expect to collect from financial assets measured at amortized cost. The entity’s estimate would consider relevant information about past events, current
conditions, and reasonable and supportable forecasts, which will result in recognition of lifetime expected credit losses upon loan origination. ASU 2016-13 is
effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2019, with early adoption permitted for annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2018. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-08, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Principal versus Agent Considerations
(Reporting Revenue Gross versus Net) which clarified the revenue recognition implementation guidance on principal versus agent considerations. In April 2016,
the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-10, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Identifying Performance Obligations and Licensing which clarified the
revenue recognition guidance regarding the identification of performance obligations and the licensing implementation. In May 2016, the FASB issued ASU No.
2016-12, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606): Narrow-Scope Improvements and Practical Expedients which narrowly amended the revenue
recognition guidance regarding collectibility, noncash consideration, presentation of sales tax and transition. ASU No. 2016-08, ASU No. 2016-10 and ASU No.
2016-12 are effective during the same period as ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers , which is effective for annual reporting period
beginning after December 15, 2017, with the option to adopt one year earlier. The Company is currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of these standards.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-09, Compensation - Stock Compensation (Topic 718): Improvements to Employee Share-Based Payment
Accounting . The standard identifies areas for simplification involving several aspects of accounting for share-based payment transactions, including the income tax
consequences, classification of awards as either equity or liabilities, an option to recognize gross stock compensation expense with actual forfeitures recognized as
they occur, as well as certain classifications on the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-09 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after
December 15, 2016, with early adoption permitted. The Company plans to adopt this standard beginning in 2017. The Company does not expect the adoption of
this ASU to have a material impact on its financial position and results of operations due to the full valuation allowance on the deferred tax asset. Upon adoption,
the Company will increase its deferred tax asset with respect to net operating loss carryforwards related to excess tax benefits, with an equal offsetting increase to
its valuation allowance. As such, the Company does not believe that a cumulative effect adjustment will be recorded in the year of adoption.
In March 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-07, Investments-Equity Method and Joint Ventures (Topic 323): Simplifying the Transition to the Equity
Method of Accounting . This guidance eliminates the requirement that when an investment qualifies for use of the equity method as a result of an increase in the
level of ownership interest or degree of influence, an investor must adjust the investment, results of operations, and retained earnings retroactively on a step-by step
basis as if the equity method had been in effect during all previous periods that the investment had been held. ASU No. 2016-07 is effective for interim and annual
reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016. The Company plans to adopt this standard beginning in 2017 and the Company does not expect the adoption
will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
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In February 2016, the FASB issued ASU No. 2016-02, Leases (Topic 842), which supersedes Topic 840, Leases . The guidance in this new standard
requires lessees to recognize assets and liabilities arising from operating leases on the balance sheet. For operating leases, a lessee is required to recognize a rightof-use asset and a lease liability, initially measured at the present value of the lease payments, in the statement of financial position, to recognize a single lease cost,
calculated so that the cost of the lease is allocated over the lease term on a generally straight-line basis, and to classify all cash payments within operating activities
in the statement of cash flows. ASU No. 2016-02 is effective for interim and annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Company is
currently evaluating the impact of the adoption of this standard.
In July 2015, the FASB issued ASU No. 2015-11, Inventory (Topic 330): Simplifying the Measurement of Inventory applicable to inventory that is measured
using first-in, first-out (FIFO) or average cost. An entity should measure inventory at the lower of cost and net realizable value. Net realizable value is the
estimated selling price in the ordinary course of business, less reasonably predictable costs of completion, disposal, and transportation. ASU No. 2015-11 is
effective for annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2016 and early adoption is permitted. The Company plans to adopt this standard beginning in
2017 and the Company does not expect the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.
In May 2014, the FASB issued ASU No. 2014-09, Revenue from Contracts with Customers (Topic 606) , which supersedes the revenue recognition
requirements in Accounting Standards Codification 605, Revenue Recognition. The core principle of the guidance is that an entity should recognize revenue to
depict the transfer of promised goods or services to customers in an amount that reflects the consideration to which the entity expects to be entitled in exchange for
those goods or services. An entity should disclose sufficient information to enable users of financial statements to understand the nature, amount, timing, and
uncertainty of revenue and cash flows arising from contracts with customers. In August 2015, the FASB issued an amendment to defer the effective date of this
accounting standard for all entities by one year, to annual reporting periods beginning after December 15, 2017 and early adoption is not permitted. The Company
does not expect the adoption will have a material impact on its consolidated financial statements.

NOTE 2-BALANCE SHEET COMPONENTS
Accounts Receivable, net
Accounts receivable, net, consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Accounts receivable

2015

$

15,335

$

15,258

Allowance for doubtful accounts

$

10,659

$

10,596

(77)

Total accounts receivable, net

(63)

Inventories
Inventories consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Raw materials

$

5,532

2015
$

2,379

Work in process

4,816

2,710

Finished goods

3,339

1,791

$

Total inventory

Property and Equipment, net
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13,687

$

6,880

Property and equipment, net consisted of the following (in thousands, except depreciable life):
Life

December 31,

(In Years)

2016
$

2015

Network and laboratory equipment

3-5

Computer software and equipment

2-3

15,582
4,320

4,207

Furniture and fixtures

3-7

186

165

Office equipment

3-5

142

142

Leasehold improvements

1-5

Accumulated depreciation and amortization
$

Property and equipment, net

$

13,520

382

316

20,612

18,350

(16,772)

(15,217)

3,840

$

3,133

Depreciation and amortization expense related to property and equipment was $1.6 million and $1.5 million for the years ended December 31, 2016 and
2015, respectively.
In addition to the property and equipment above, the Company has prepaid licenses. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, amortization related
to these prepaid licenses was $1.7 million and $1.1 million, respectively.
Other Current Liabilities
Other current liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Deferred revenue

$

2015
928

$

—

Warranty liability

417

325

Customer deposits

326

342

Sales return reserve

283

490

Amounts billed to the U.S. government in excess of approved rates

191

191

Other

727

871

$

Total other current liabilities

2,872

$

2,219

Other Long-Term liabilities
Other long-term liabilities consisted of the following (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Deferred revenue

$

2015
2,337

$

—

Deferred tax liabilities

355

318

Income taxes payable for unrecognized tax benefits

977

434

Other

227
$

Total other long-term liabilities

3,896

160
$

912

NOTE 3-FAIR VALUE MEASUREMENTS
The Company’s financial assets and liabilities are valued using market prices on active markets (“Level 1”), less active markets (“Level 2”) and
unobservable markets (“Level 3”). Level 1 instrument valuations are obtained from real-time quotes for transactions in active exchange markets involving identical
assets. Level 2 instrument valuations are obtained from readily-available pricing sources for comparable instruments. Level 3 instruments are valued using
unobservable market values in which there is little or no market data, and which require the Company to apply judgment to determine the fair value.
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The Company’s financial instruments measured at fair value on a recurring basis consist of Level I assets and Level III liabilities. Level I assets include
highly liquid money market funds that are included in cash and cash equivalents. Level III liabilities consist of common stock warrants liability that are included in
other current liabilities. For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company did not have any significant transfers between Level 1, Level 2 and Level
3.
The following table summarizes the Company’s financial assets and liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis as of December 31, 2016 and 2015
(in thousands):
Fair Value Measurements Using
Quoted
Prices in
Active
Markets for
Identical
Assets
(Level 1)

Carrying
Value

Significant
Other
Observable
Inputs
(Level 2)

Significant
Unobservable
Inputs
(Level 3)

December 31, 2016:
Financial Assets:
Money market funds

$

12,401

$

12,401

$

—

$

—

$

9

$

—

$

—

$

9

$

12,364

$

12,364

$

—

$

—

$

39

$

—

$

—

$

39

Financial liabilities:
Common stock warrants liability
December 31, 2015:
Financial Assets:
Money market funds
Financial liabilities:
Common stock warrants liability

Cash equivalents are stated at amortized cost, which approximates fair value at the balance sheet dates, due to the short period of time to maturity. Accounts
receivable, accounts payable, accrued compensation, and other accrued liabilities are stated at their carrying value, which approximates fair value due to the short
time to the expected receipt or payment date. The carrying amount of the Company’s term loan and capital lease obligations approximates fair value as the stated
borrowing rates approximate market rates currently available to the Company for loans and capital leases with similar terms.
Common Stock Warrants Liability
The Company issued warrants to purchase common stock in connection with a waiver of certain events of default that arose under a November 2009 loan
and security agreement with Bridge Bank. Certain provisions in the warrant agreements provided for down-round protection if the Company raised equity capital at
a per share price less than the per share price of the warrants. Such down-round protection requires the Company to classify the common stock warrants as a
liability. Common stock warrants are initially measured at their estimated fair value on the issuance date. At the end of each reporting period, changes in the fair
value of common stock warrants are recorded in other expense, net on the consolidated statements of operations. The Company will continue to adjust the common
stock warrants liability to its estimated fair value until the earlier of the exercise or expiration of the warrants.
In July 2010, December 2013 and September 2015, the Company raised additional capital through offerings of common stock of 2,760,000 shares,
9,573,750 shares and 10,643,000 shares at a price of $1.75 per share, $1.42 per share and $1.70 per share, respectively. In June 2016, the Company completed
another round of equity financing through an offering of common stock of 13,194,643 shares at $2.00 per share. All of these equity financing transactions triggered
the down-round protection and adjustment of the number of warrants issued to Bridge Bank.
The following table summarizes the warrants subject to liability accounting as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands, except share and per share
amounts):
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Number of Common Stock Warrants

Holder
Bridge
Bank

Upon
Issuance
20,000

As of
December 31,
2016
32,429

As of
December 31,
2015
31,573

Fair Value

Grant Date

Expiration
Date

April 7,
2010

April 7, 2017

Exercise
Price per
Share
$

As of
December 31,
2016

2.25 $

As of
December 31,
2015
9 $

39

The fair value of common stock warrants was determined using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model, which requires the use of significant unobservable
market values. As a result, common stock warrants with down-round protection are classified as Level III financial instruments.
The fair value of the warrants was estimated using the following assumptions:
As of December 31,
2016

2015

Stock price

$

2.52

$

3.04

Exercise price

$

2.25

$

2.31

Expected life

0.27 years

Risk-free interest rate

1.27 years

0.85%

Volatility

0.86%

20%

Fair value per share

$

62%

0.29

$

1.23

The change in the fair value of the Level 3 common stock warrants liability during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 is as follows (in
thousands):
Fair value as of December 31, 2014

$

8

Change in fair value

31

Fair value as of December 31, 2015

39

Change in fair value

(30)
$

Fair value as of December 31, 2016

9

The warrant liability is included in other current liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
NOTE 4-ACQUISITIONS
Acquisition of Magnum Semiconductor, Inc.
On April 5, 2016, the Company completed its acquisition of Magnum pursuant to the terms of that certain Agreement and Plan of Merger. Magnum was a
fabless semiconductor manufacturer and software solution developer, and provided a well-developed and comprehensive portfolio of video broadcasting and
compression solutions to GigPeak. The total purchase consideration was a combination of equity and cash, including 6,990,654 shares of common stock with a fair
value of $17.9 million and a cash payment of $37.2 million of which a significant portion was used to repay Magnum’s outstanding debt and other liabilities.
Pursuant to the merger agreement for the acquisition of Magnum, $6.0 million of the purchase consideration was to remain in escrow for a period of up to at least
12 months and relates to certain indemnification obligations of Magnum’s former equity holders. Of this $6.0 million, $5.0 million was to be held for a period of
up to at least 12 months, with the remainder held for an additional 12 months. After the end of the Company’s second quarter, in June 2016, the Company
submitted a claim to the stockholder representative for a net working capital adjustment pursuant to the terms of the merger agreement for the acquisition of
Magnum. In November 2016, the Company and the stockholder representative agreed on the amount of the net working capital adjustment in satisfaction of the
claim. As a result, joint instructions were given by the Company and the stockholder representative to the escrow agent to release 1,079,388 shares of the
Company’s common stock representing $2.8 million using the valuation of these shares as set by the merger agreement for the acquisition of Magnum, to the
Company from the escrow fund and such released shares are held by the Company as treasury stock. As of December 31, 2016, 1,243,621 shares remain in escrow,
representing $3.2 million using the valuation of these shares as set by the merger agreement for the acquisition of Magnum. After this release, the Company
adjusted the total purchase consideration by $2.8 million during the quarter ended December 31, 2016. The Magnum acquisition was partially funded by
borrowings of $22.1 million from Silicon Valley Bank (See Note 7-Credit Facilities).
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The total purchase consideration of $52.3 million has been allocated to tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed on the basis of their
respective estimated fair values on the acquisition date. The Company will continue to evaluate certain assets, liabilities and tax estimates that are subject to change
within the measurement period (up to one year from the acquisition date).
The following table summarizes the fair values of assets acquired and liabilities assumed (in thousands):
December 31, 2016
Tangible assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

1,707

Accounts receivable

1,046

Inventories

1,255

Other current assets

1,069

Property and equipment

233

Other long-term assets

15

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable

(1,279)

Accrued and other current liabilities

(2,190)

Deferred revenue, net of associated costs

(4,912)

Other long-term liabilities

(593)

Identifiable intangible assets acquired:
Developed technology

16,710

IPR&D

7,680

Customer relationships

800

Trade name

330

Goodwill arising from the acquisition:
Goodwill

30,412
$

Total purchase consideration

52,283

The Company determined the valuation of the identifiable intangible assets using established valuation techniques. The developed technology was valued
using the forward looking multi-period excess earnings method under the income approach. The IPR&D was valued using the cost to recreate method under the
asset approach. Customer relationships and trade name were valued under the distributor method and under the relief from royalty method, respectively.
Identifiable intangible assets acquired are amortized on a straight line basis over their respective estimated useful lives of 15 months to 7 years.
The amount of acquired intangible assets at Magnum acquisition were comprised of the following (in thousands):
Amount
Developed technology

$

IPR&D
Customer relationships
Trade name
$

Total

Life in Years

16,710

7

7,680

Indefinite

800

7

330

1.3

25,520

Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase consideration over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and represents
the future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The goodwill arising from the
Magnum acquisition primarily consisted of the business synergies expected from the combined entities.
For the year ended December 31, 2016, the Company incurred acquisition-related transaction costs of $1.5 million, which were recorded in selling, general
and administrative expenses in the consolidated statements of operations.
Pro Forma Financial Information (unaudited)
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The following table presents the unaudited pro forma financial information for the combined entity of GigPeak and Magnum, as if the acquisition had
occurred at the beginning of fiscal 2015 after giving effect to certain purchase accounting adjustments (in thousands, except per share amounts):

Years Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Net revenue

$

62,619

$

57,478

Net loss

$

(2,221)

$

(12,674)

Net loss per share - basic and diluted

$

(0.04)

$

(0.29)

Acquisition of Terasquare Co., Ltd.
On September 30, 2015, the Company completed its acquisition of all of the outstanding shares of Terasquare Co., Ltd. (“Terasquare”) from the four former
stockholders of Terasquare. Terasquare has low power, CMOS high speed communication interface semiconductors for 100Gbps Ethernet, Fiber Channel, and
EDR Infiniband applications. Its quad channel Clock Data Recovery (“CDR”) technology and products for 100GbE data communication applications are
applicable to 100Gbps Ethernet (QSFP28, CFP2, CFP4), OTU-4, 32G Fiber Channel, and EDR Infiniband.
The aggregate purchase price for all of the shares of the stock of Terasquare was $4.4 million, comprised solely of cash, subject to certain adjustments. The
Company furnished the purchase price to the former Terasquare stockholders from cash on hand that it had raised in a previously disclosed secondary offering of
its common stock that closed last month. In addition, the Company paid or assumed liabilities of Terasquare in the amount of $1.1 million.
The transaction was accounted for under the purchase method of accounting and, accordingly, the results of operations are included in the accompanying
consolidated statement of operations subsequent to September 30, 2015.
The net tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed in the acquisition were recorded at fair value. The Company determined the valuation of the
identifiable intangible assets using established valuation techniques.
The fair values of identifiable intangible assets related to developed technology and IPR&D were determined under the income and asset approaches,
respectively. The developed technology was valued using the forward looking multi-period excess earnings method under the income approach. The IPR&D was
valued using the cost to recreate method under the asset approach. The fair value of the intangibles is management’s best estimate.
Goodwill represents the excess of the purchase price over the fair value of the net tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and represents the
future economic benefits arising from other assets acquired that could not be individually identified and separately recognized. The goodwill arising from the
transaction with Terasquare primarily consisted of the synergies expected from the merger with Terasquare.
The total purchase price of $4.4 million was allocated to the tangible and identifiable intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
estimated fair values at the date of acquisition as follows (in thousands):
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December 31, 2016
Tangible assets acquired:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

22

Other current assets

55

Property and equipment

22

Restricted cash

67

Others assets

86

Liabilities assumed:
Accounts payable

(504)

Accrued compensation

(29)

Other current liabilities

(252)

Other long-term liabilities

(317)

Identifiable intangible assets acquired:
Developed technology

2,744

IPR&D

383

Goodwill acquired:
Goodwill

2,170
$

Total purchase price

4,447

The amount of acquired intangible assets at Terasquare acquisition were comprised of the following (in thousands):
Amount
Developed technology

$

IPR&D
$

Total

Life, in Years
2,744

7

383

Indefinite

3,127

NOTE 5- INTANGIBLE ASSETS, NET AND GOODWILL
Intangible assets, net consist of the following (in thousands):
As of December 31, 2016
Life
(years)

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross

As of December 31, 2015
Net

Accumulated
Amortization

Gross

Net

Definite-lived intangible assets:
Customer relationships

6-8

$

4,077 $

(3,050)

$

1,027 $

3,277 $

(2,542)

$

735

Existing technology

6-7

23,237

(5,951)

17,286

6,527

(3,386)

3,141

Patents

5-16

457

(412)

45

457

(407)

50

Trade name

1-10

989

(693)

296

659

(438)

221

28,760

(10,106)

18,654

10,920

(6,773)

4,147

8,063

383

Total definite-lived
intangible assets
Indefinite-lived intangible assets:
IPR&D
Total intangible assets

indefinite

8,063
$

36,823 $

—
(10,106)

$

26,717 $

11,303 $

During the year ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, amortization of intangible assets was as follows (in thousands):
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—
(6,773)

383
$

4,530

Years Ended December 31,
2016
Cost of revenue

$

Research and development expense

2015

1,681

$

413

391

Selling, general and administrative expense

98

764
$

480

2,836

$

991

As of December 31, 2016, amortization of certain developed technologies of $497,000 was capitalized in inventory, and no amortization of intangible assets
was capitalized in inventory as of December 31, 2015.
Estimated future amortization expense related to definite-lived intangible assets as of December 31, 2016 is as follows (in thousands):
Years Ending December 31,
2017

$

3,512

2018

2,955

2019

2,946

2020

2,897

2021

2,897

Thereafter

3,447
$

Total

18,654

The Company performs a review of the carrying value of its intangible assets, if circumstances warrant. In its review, it compares the gross, undiscounted
cash flows expected to be generated by the underlying assets against the carrying value of those assets. To the extent such cash flows do not exceed the carrying
value of the underlying asset; it will record an impairment charge. The Company did not record an impairment charge on any intangibles, including goodwill,
during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
As of December 31, 2015, the Company had $12.6 million of goodwill in connection with its previous acquisitions. The changes in the carrying amount of
goodwill for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 are as follows (in thousands):
Amount
Balance as of December 31, 2014

$

Goodwill adjustment from Tahoe RF acquisition

10,306
89

Goodwill addition from Terasquare acquisition

2,170

Balance as of December 31, 2015

12,565

Goodwill addition from Magnum acquisition

30,412
$

Balance as of December 31, 2016

42,977

On April 5, 2016, the Company completed its acquisition of Magnum, a fabless semiconductor manufacturer and software solution developer, with a welldeveloped and comprehensive portfolio of video broadcasting and compression solutions, which resulted in $30.4 million of goodwill. The acquisition closed for a
total purchase consideration of $52.3 million, which included assumed liabilities of $9.0 million.
On September 30, 2015, the Company completed its acquisition of Terasquare, a Seoul, Korea-based, fabless semiconductor company and provider of low
power, CMOS high speed communication interface semiconductors for 100Gbps Ethernet, Fiber Channel, and EDR Infiniband applications, and CDR devices,
which resulted in $2.2 million of goodwill. The acquisition closed for a total purchase price of $4.4 million and assumed liabilities of $1.1 million.
NOTE 6- INVESTMENT IN UNCONSOLIDATED AFFILIATES
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In January 2016, the Company invested $1.2 million for a minority stake in Anagog Ltd. (“Anagog”), the developer of the world’s largest crowdsourced
parking network. Anagog perfects the mobility status algorithms that allow for advanced on-phone machine learning capabilities for the best user experience with
ultra-low battery consumption and a high level of privacy protection. As of December 31, 2016, this cost method investment of $1.2 million is recorded in other
assets on the consolidated balance sheets.
In February 2014, together with CPqD, the Company incepted a joint venture, originally named BrPhotonics Produtos Optoeletrônicos LTDA and after an
investment in May 2016 by Inova Empresa Fundo De Investimento Em Participações, now named BrPhotonics Produtos Optoeletrônicos S/A (“BrP”), of which
the Company owns 37.9% of equity interest. BrP is a provider of advanced high-speed devices for optical communications and integrated transceiver components
for information networks, and is based in Campinas, Brazil. The Company transferred into BrP its knowledge-base and intellectual property of TFPS TM
technology. The Company transferred its inventory related to the TFPS TM platform and the complete set of production line equipment that previously resided at
its Bothell, Washington, facility to CPqD, for use on the BrP joint venture. As of the transfer date, the Company’s net book value of the inventory and property and
equipment was $245,000 and $211,000, respectively. During the second quarter of 2015, the Company made an additional capital contribution of $3,000 pursuant
to BrP’s Amended Articles of Association which resulted in a total investment in BrP of $459,000.
For the year ended December 31, 2015, the Company had losses of $3,000 for its allocated portion of BrP’s results. Since the Company’s share of the loss
exceeded its carrying cost of the investment in BrP, the Company’s investment in an unconsolidated affiliate was written down to zero as of December 31, 2015.
The Company has not made any further investment in BrP.
NOTE 7-CREDIT FACILITIES
In March 25, 2013, the Company and its wholly owned subsidiaries, ChipX, Incorporated and Endwave Corporation (together with the Company, the “Prior
Borrowers”) entered into a Second Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement (“Loan Agreement”) with Silicon Valley Bank (“SVB”) to replace the
Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement entered in December 2011.
In May 2015, SVB and the Prior Borrowers amended the Loan Agreement by entering into a Second Amendment to the Second Restated Loan Agreement
(the “Second Amendment”). Pursuant to the Second Amendment, the total aggregate amount that the Company was entitled to borrow from SVB under a
Revolving Loan facility was $7.0 million, based on net eligible accounts receivable after an 80% advance rate and subject to limits based on the Company’s
eligible accounts as determined by SVB. In addition, the applicable interest rate was decreased from Prime Rate plus 0.6% to Prime Rate plus 0.4%. The terms of
the Second Amendment, were set to expire on May 6, 2016.
In April 2016, SVB and the Prior Borrowers, with newly acquired Magnum, entered into the Third Amended and Restated Loan and Security Agreement
(the “Third Restated Loan Agreement”) , amending and restating the Loan Agreement, as amended, in its entirety. Pursuant to the Third Restated Loan Agreement,
the total aggregate amount that the Company is entitled to borrow from SVB has increased to an amount not to exceed $29.0 million, which is split into two
different credit facilities, comprised of (i) the existing Revolving Loan facility which was amended to provide that the Company is entitled to borrow from SVB up
to an amount not to exceed $14.0 million, based on net eligible accounts receivable after an 80% advance rate and subject to limits based on the Company’s
eligible accounts as determined by SVB (the “Amended Revolving Loan”) and (ii) a second facility under which the Company is entitled to borrow from SVB up
to $15.0 million without reference to accounts receivable, and which must be repaid in sixty equal installments, unless the Company exercises its right to prepay
the loan (the “Term Loan”). The interest rate for the revolving line is Prime Rate plus 0.4%, or 4.15% as of December 31, 2016. The interest rate for the term loan
is Prime Rate plus 1.25%, or 5.00% as of December 31, 2016. The Amended Revolving Loan has a term of 24 months, and no balance is outstanding as of
December 31, 2016. The outstanding principal balance of the Term Loan as of December 31, 2016 was $13.0 million, of which $3.0 million was recorded in the
consolidated balance sheet as note payable, current.
Future principal payments under the Term Loan are as follows (in thousands):
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Years Ending December 31,
2017

$

3,000

2018

3,000

2019

3,000

2020

3,000

2021

1,000

Total Payments

13,000

Less: unamortized debt discounts

(249)

Less: current portion

(2,898)

Note Payable, net of current portion

$

9,853

SVB had two outstanding existing warrants to purchase common stock of the Company: (i) a warrant to purchase 4,125 shares of common stock at an
exercise price of $0.73, with an expiration date of October 5, 2017; and (ii) a warrant to purchase 125,000 shares of common stock at an exercise price of $4.00 per
share, with an expiration date of April 23, 2017. In connection with the Third Restated Loan Agreement, these warrants have been amended and restated to extend
the expiration date to October 5, 2022 and April 22, 2022, respectively. The change in the fair value of the common stock warrants related to the extension of the
expiration date was $143,000 and was recorded as a debt discount on the SVB term loan.
In connection with the Third Restated Loan Agreement, the Company incurred legal and administrative expenses of $200,000 which was recorded as a
discount on the SVB Term Loan. The debt discount will be amortized to interest expense during the life of the term loan using the effective interest method. For
the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company recorded amortization of debt discount of $94,000 and $0, respectively.
The Third Restated Loan Agreement with SVB is collateralized by all of the Company’s assets, including all accounts, equipment, inventory, receivables,
and general intangibles. The Third Restated Loan Agreement contains certain restrictive covenants that will impose significant operating and financial restrictions
on its operations, including, but not limited to restrictions that limit its ability to:
• Sell, lease, or otherwise transfer, or permit any of its subsidiaries to sell, lease or otherwise transfer, all or any part of its business or property, except in
the ordinary course of business or in connection with certain indebtedness or investments permitted under the amended and restated loan agreement;
• Merge or consolidate, or permit any of its subsidiaries to merge or consolidate, with or into any other business organization, or acquire, or permit any of
its subsidiaries to acquire, all or substantially all of the capital stock or property of another person;
• Create, incur, assume or be liable for any indebtedness, other than certain indebtedness permitted under the amended and restated loan and security
agreement;
• Pay any dividends or make any distribution or payment on, or redeem, retire, or repurchase, any capital stock; and
• Make any investment, other than certain investments permitted under the amended and restated loan and security agreement.
The Company is in compliance with the covenants as of December 31, 2016.
NOTE 8-COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES
Commitments
Leases
In July 2016, the Company entered into a Fifth Amendment to Lease Agreement related to its headquarters located at 130 Baytech Drive, San Jose, CA
95134. The amendment extended the term of the lease by another 64 months from March 1, 2017 to June 30, 2022. The amended lease provides for a rent holiday
of four months and an option to further extend the lease term for five years with monthly rent at the then fair market value. The Company recognizes rent expense
on a straight-line basis over the term of the lease with the difference between the expense and the payments recorded as deferred rent on the consolidated balance
sheets. Any reimbursements by the landlord for tenant improvements are considered lease incentives, the balance of which is recorded as a lease incentive
obligation within deferred rent on the consolidated balance sheets and amortized as a reduction of rent expense over the life of the lease. Lease renewal periods are
considered on a lease-by-lease basis in determining the lease term.
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The Company leases its domestic and foreign sales offices under non-cancelable operating leases. These leases contain various expiration dates and renewal
options. The Company also leases certain software licenses under operating leases. Total facilities rent expense for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015
was $890,000 and $494,000, respectively.
Aggregate non-cancelable future minimum rental payments under capital and operating leases are as follows (in thousands):
Capital Leases

Operating Leases

Minimum
Lease
Payments

Years Ending December 31,
2017

$

Minimum
Lease
Payments
9

$

896

2018

—

1,065

2019

—

942

2020

—

858

2021

—

772

Thereafter

—

Total minimum lease payments

395
$

9

Less: amount representing interest

4,928

—

Total capital lease obligations

9

Less: current portion

(9)
$

Long-term portion of capital lease obligations

—

The gross and net book value of the fixed assets under capital lease was as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Acquired cost

$

Accumulated amortization

2015
36

$

(27)
$

Net book value

9

13
(7)

$

6

The amortization of fixed assets acquired under capital lease is included in depreciation expense.
Contingencies
Tax Contingencies
The Company’s income tax calculations are based on application of the respective U.S. federal, state or foreign tax law. Its tax filings, however, are subject
to audit by the respective tax authorities. Accordingly, the Company recognizes tax liabilities based upon its estimate of whether, and the extent to which,
additional taxes will be due.
Legal Contingencies
From time to time, the Company may become involved in legal proceedings, claims and litigation arising in the ordinary course of business. When it
believes a loss is probable and can be reasonably estimated, the Company accrues the estimated loss in its consolidated financial statements. Where the outcome of
these matters is not determinable, the Company does not make a provision in its consolidated financial statements until the loss, if any, is probable and can be
reasonable estimated or the outcome becomes known.
Product Warranties
The Company’s products typically carry a standard warranty period of approximately one year. The Company records a liability based on estimates of the
costs that may be incurred under its warranty obligations and charges such costs to the cost of revenue at the time revenues are recognized. The warranty obligation
is affected by product failure rates, material usage and service delivery costs incurred in correcting a product failure. The estimates of anticipated rates of warranty
claims and costs per claim are primarily based on historical information and future forecasts.
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The table below summarizes the activities related to accrued product warranties, which is included as a component of other current liabilities, for the years
ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
December 31,
2016
Accrued product warranties - beginning of period

$

Warranty charges

2015
325

$

695

Warranty from Magnum acquisition
Warranties settled
$

Accrued product warranties - end of period

334
452

68

—

(671)

(461)

417

$

325

NOTE 9-STOCKHOLDERS’ EQUITY AND STOCK-BASED COMPENSATION
Public Offering
On August 21, 2015, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement (the “2015 Underwriting Agreement”) with selling stockholders and Cowen and
Company, LLC and Roth Capital Partners, LLC as representative of several underwriters to the 2015 Underwriting Agreement relating to (i) a public primary
offering of an aggregate of 9,218,000 shares of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share at a public offering price of $1.70 per share and (ii) a
public secondary offering by the selling stockholders of an aggregate of 282,000 shares of common stock at $1.70 per share. The shares were accompanied by the
associated rights to purchase shares of Series A Junior Preferred Stock, par value $0.001 per share (the “Series A Junior Preferred Stock”), which the Company
created by the Rights Agreement, dated December 16, 2011, between the Company and the American Stock Transfer & Trust Company, LLC, as Rights Agent, as
amended by the Amended and Restated Rights Agreement, dated December 16, 2014 (the “Amended Rights Agreement”). Under the terms of the 2015
Underwriting Agreement, the Company granted the underwriters a 30 day option to purchase up to an additional 1,425,000 shares of common stock to cover
overallotments, which the underwriters subsequently exercised on September 10, 2015.
On September 10, 2015, the Company completed its public offering of 10,643,000 newly issued shares of common stock at a price to the public of $1.70 per
share. The number of shares sold in the offering included the underwriter’s full exercise on September 10, 2015 of their over-allotment option of 1,425,000 shares
of common stock. The net proceeds to the Company from the offering was approximately $16.5 million which consisted of $16.9 million after underwriting
discounts, commissions and expenses less an additional $420,000 for legal, accounting, registration and other transaction costs related to the public offering.
On June 10, 2016, the Company entered into an underwriting agreement (the “2016 Underwriting Agreement”) with selling stockholders and Cowen and
Company, LLC, Raymond James & Associates, Inc. and Needham & Company, LLC relating to (i) a public primary offering of an aggregate of 11,319,643 shares
of the Company’s common stock, par value $0.001 per share, at a public offering price of $2.00 per share; (ii) a public secondary offering by certain of its officers
and its directors of an aggregate of 684,600 shares of common stock at $2.00 per share; and (iii) a public secondary offering by certain of its stockholders who
were former stockholders of Magnum of an aggregate of 495,757 shares of common stock at $2.00 per share. The shares were accompanied by the associated
rights to purchase shares of Series A Junior Preferred Stock, which the Company created by the Rights Agreement. Under the terms of the 2016 Underwriting
Agreement, the Company granted the underwriters a 30 day option to purchase up to an additional 1,875,000 shares of common stock to cover overallotments,
which the underwriters subsequently exercised on June 15, 2016.
On June 15, 2016, the Company completed its public offering of the 13,194,643 newly issued shares of common stock. The net proceeds to the Company
from the offering was approximately $24.3 million which consisted of proceeds of $24.7 million after underwriting discounts, commissions and expenses, less an
additional $0.4 million for legal, accounting, registration and other transaction costs related to the public offering.
Private Equity Placement
On March 21, 2016, the Company entered into a Securities Purchase Agreement (the “PDSTI Agreement”) with Pudong Science and Technology
Investment (Cayman) Co., Ltd., an affiliate of Shanghai Pudong Science and Technology Investment Co., Ltd. (collectively, “PDSTI”), pursuant to which PDSTI
will purchase approximately $5.0 million of the Company’s common stock. Under the PDSTI Agreement, on March 24, 2016, the Company issued 1,754,385
shares of its common stock to PDSTI in a private placement at a purchase price of $2.85 per share.
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Pursuant to the PDSTI Agreement, the Company agreed to file a registration statement on Form S-3 to provide registration rights to PDSTI in respect of the
shares. The SEC declared the registration statement effective on June 3, 2016. The PDSTI Agreement provided that if the registration statement was not declared
effective by July 7, 2016, the Company would pay to PDSTI, as liquidated damages, 0.4% of the aggregate purchase price on a monthly, prorated basis, until the
registration statement was declared effective, with interest on these liquidated damages to accrue at the rate of 1.0% per month until paid in full. In the event that
any U.S. governmental body or agency took any action or issued any order within six months that would have prevented PDSTI from holding the shares or
invalidated the Company’s issuance of the shares to PDSTI, the Company had agreed to return PDSTI’s full purchase price, plus 0.4% interest on the purchase
price (accruing monthly until paid in full), and to reimburse PDSTI’s expenses in connection with negotiating the private placement, up to $15,000. As a result,
upon issuance of the shares to PDSTI, the Company classified the proceeds as mezzanine equity. As of September 2016 both of the loss contingencies on
liquidated damages and the contingent redemption feature expired, and the net proceeds from the PDSTI Agreement of $4.6 million, comprised of the purchase
price of $5.0 million net of $382,000 of related costs, were reclassified to permanent equity on the consolidated balance sheets.
Common and Preferred Stock
In December 2008, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the Certificate of Incorporation to authorize 50,000,000 shares of common
stock, par value $0.001 per share. In November 2014, the Company’s stockholders approved an amendment to the Amended and Restated Certificate of
Incorporation to increase the number of authorized shares of common stock from 50,000,000 shares to 100,000,000 shares, par value $0.001 per share. In addition,
the Company is authorized to issue 1,000,000 shares of preferred stock, par value $0.001 per share, of which 750,000 shares have been designated Series A Junior
Preferred Stock with powers, preferences and rights as set forth in the amended and restated certificate of designation dated December 15, 2014; the remainder of
the shares of preferred stock are undesignated, for which the Board of Directors is authorized to fix the designation, powers, preferences and rights. As of
December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were no shares of preferred stock issued or outstanding.
On December 16, 2014, the Company entered into an Amended Rights Agreement to extend the expiration date of its stockholder rights plan that may have
the effect of deterring, delaying, or preventing a change in control. The Amended Rights Agreement amends the Rights Agreement previously adopted by (i)
extending the expiration date by three years to December 16, 2017, (ii) decreasing the exercise price per right issued to stockholders pursuant to the stockholder
rights plan from $8.50 to $5.25, and (iii) making certain other technical and conforming changes. The Amended and Restated Rights Agreement was not adopted in
response to any acquisition proposal. Under the rights plan, the Company issued a dividend of one preferred share purchase right for each share of common stock
held by stockholders of record as of January 6, 2012, and the Company will issue one preferred stock purchase right to each share of common stock issued between
January 6, 2012 and the earlier of either the rights’ exercisability or the expiration of the Rights Agreement, as amended by the Amended Rights Agreement. Each
right entitles stockholders to purchase one one-thousandth of the Company’s Series A Junior Preferred Stock.
In general, the exercisability of the rights to purchase preferred stock will be triggered if any person or group, including persons knowingly acting in concert
to affect the control of the Company, is or becomes a beneficial owner of 10% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common stock after the
Adoption Date. Stockholders or beneficial ownership groups who owned 10% or more of the outstanding shares of common stock of the Company on or before the
Adoption Date will not trigger the preferred share purchase rights unless they acquire an additional 1% or more of the outstanding shares of the Company’s
common stock. Each right entitles a holder with the right upon exercise to purchase one one-thousandth of a share of preferred stock at an exercise price that is
currently set at $5.25 per right, subject to purchase price adjustments as set forth in the Amended Rights Agreement. Each share of preferred stock has voting rights
equal to one thousand shares of common stock. In the event that exercisability of the rights is triggered, each right held by an acquiring person or group would
become void. As a result, upon triggering of exercisability of the rights, there would be significant dilution in the ownership interest of the acquiring person or
group, making it difficult or unattractive for the acquiring person or group to pursue an acquisition of the Company. These rights expire in December 2017, unless
earlier redeemed or exchanged by the Company.
Warrants
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, the Company had a total of 161,554 and 160,698 warrants to purchase common stock outstanding under all warrant
agreements. These warrants have a weighted-average exercise price of $3.57 per share and expire between April 7, 2017 and October 5, 2022. During the year
ended December 31, 2016, no warrants were exercised or expired. During the year ended December 31, 2015, no warrants were exercised and 500,000 warrants
expired. Some of the warrants have anti-dilution provisions which adjust the number of warrants available to the holder such as, but not limited to, stock dividends,
stock splits and certain reclassifications, exchanges, combinations or substitutions. These provisions are specific to each warrant agreement (see Note 3 - Fair
Value Measurements).
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Equity Incentive Plan
As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, there were 7,274,988 options and 7,918,584 options outstanding under all stock option plans. As of December 31, 2016
and 2015, there were 4,510,680 and 4,361,833 RSUs outstanding under the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan.
2008 Equity Incentive Plan
In December 2008, the Company adopted the 2008 Equity Incentive Plan (the “2008 Plan”) for directors, employees, consultants and advisors to the
Company or its affiliates. Under the 2008 Plan, 2,500,000 shares of common stock were reserved for issuance upon the completion of a merger with Lumera
Corporation (“Lumera”) on December 9, 2008. On January 1 of each year, starting in 2009, the aggregate number of shares reserved for issuance under the 2008
Plan increase automatically by the lesser of (i) 5% of the number of shares of common stock outstanding as of the Company’s immediately preceding fiscal year,
or (ii) a number of shares determined by the Board of Directors. The maximum number of shares of common stock to be granted is up to 21,000,000 shares.
Forfeited options or awards generally become available for future awards. As of December 31, 2016, the stockholders had approved 20,540,765 shares for future
issuance. On January 1, 2016, there was an automatic increase of 2,260,527 shares. As of December 31, 2016, 11,427,032 options to purchase common stock and
RSUs were outstanding and 1,817,570 shares are authorized for future issuance under the 2008 equity incentive plan.
Under the 2008 Plan, the exercise price of a stock option is at least 100% of the stock’s fair market value on the date of grant, and if an incentive stock
option (“ISO”) is granted to a 10% stockholder at least 110% of the stock’s fair market value on the date of grant. Vesting periods for awards are recommended by
the chief executive officer and generally provide for stock options to vest over a four-year period, with a one year vesting cliff of 25%, and have a maximum life of
ten years from the date of grant. The Company has also issued RSUs which generally vest over a three quarters to four year period.
2007 Equity Incentive Plan
In August 2007, GigOptix LLC adopted the GigOptix LLC Equity Incentive Plan (the "2007 Plan"). The 2007 Plan provided for grants of options to
purchase membership units, membership awards and restricted membership units to employees, officers and non-employee directors, and upon the completion of
the merger with Lumera were converted into grants of up to 632,500 shares of stock. Vesting periods are determined by the Board of Directors and generally
provide for stock options to vest over a four-year period and expire ten years from date of grant. Vesting for certain shares of restricted stock is contingent upon
both service and performance criteria. The 2007 Plan was terminated upon the completion of merger with Lumera on December 9, 2008 and the remaining 864
stock options not granted under the 2007 Plan were cancelled. No shares of the Company’s common stock remain available for issuance of new grants under the
2007 Plan other than for satisfying exercises of stock options granted under this plan prior to its termination. As of December 31, 2016, options to purchase a total
of 321,450 shares of common stock and 4,125 warrants to purchase common stock were outstanding.
Lumera 2000 and 2004 Stock Option Plan
In December 2008, in connection with the merger with Lumera, the Company assumed the existing Lumera 2000 Equity Incentive Plan and the Lumera
2004 Stock Option Plan (the “Lumera Plan”). All unvested options granted under the Lumera Plan were assumed by the Company as part of the merger. All
contractual terms of the assumed options remain the same, except for the converted number of shares and exercise price based on merger conversion ratio of 0.125.
As of December 31, 2016, no additional options can be granted under the Lumera Plan, and options to purchase a total of 37,186 shares of common stock were
outstanding.
Stock-based Compensation Expense
The following table summarizes the Company’s stock-based compensation expense for the years ended December 31 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Cost of revenue

$

Research and development expense

2015
293

$

1,195

Selling, general and administrative expense

3,099
$

Total stock-based compensation expense
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4,587

387
1,072
2,389

$

3,848

Stock-based compensation expense capitalized to inventory was immaterial for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
The Company did not grant any options during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015.
Stock Options
The following table summarizes option activities under the Company’s equity incentive plans for the year ended December 31, 2016:
WeightedAverage
Exercise
Price

Options
Outstanding-December 31, 2015
Exercised
Forfeited/Expired

7,918,584

$

(454,526)

WeightedAverage
Remaining
Contractual
Term

Aggregate
Intrinsic
Value

(in years)

(in thousands)

2.32

4.82

$

7,422

1.60

(189,070)

5.77

Outstanding-December 31, 2016

7,274,988

$

2.28

3.79

$

3,429

Vested and exercisable, December 31, 2016

7,240,820

$

2.28

3.77

$

3,373

Vested and exercisable and expected to vest, December 31, 2016

7,272,682

$

2.28

3.79

$

3,426

The aggregate intrinsic value reflects the difference between the exercise price of stock options and the fair value of the underlying common stock as
determined by the Company’s closing stock price. The total intrinsic value of options exercised during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015 was $538,000
and $133,000, respectively.
As of December 31, 2016, the unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to stock options, net of estimated forfeitures, was $15,000, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 0.4 years.
The Company generally estimates the fair value of stock options granted using a Black-Scholes option-pricing model. This model requires the input of
highly subjective assumptions, including the options expected life and the price volatility of the Company’s underlying stock. Actual volatility, expected lives,
interest rates and forfeitures may be different from the Company’s assumptions, which would result in an actual value of the options being different from
estimated. This fair value of stock option grants is amortized on a straight-line basis over the requisite service period of the awards, which is generally the vesting
period.
The majority of the stock options that the Company grants to its employees provide for vesting over a specified period of time, normally a four-year period,
with no other conditions to vesting. However, the Company may also grant stock options for which vesting occurs not only on the basis of elapsed time, but also on
the basis of specified Company performance criteria being satisfied. In this case, the Company makes a determination regarding the probability of the performance
criteria being achieved and uses a Black-Scholes option-pricing model to value the options incorporating management’s assumptions for the expected holding
period, risk-free interest rate, stock price volatility and dividend yield. Compensation expense is recognized ratably over the vesting period, if it is expected that the
performance criteria will be met.
RSUs
RSUs are converted into shares of the Company’s common stock upon vesting on a one-for-one basis. Typically, vesting of RSUs is subject to the
employee’s continuing service to the Company. RSUs generally vest over a period of one to four years and are expensed ratably on a straight line basis over their
respective vesting period net of estimated forfeitures. The fair value of the RSUs granted is the product of the number of shares granted and the grant date fair
value of the Company’s common stock.
The following table summarizes RSU activities under the Company’s 2008 Plan for the year ended December 31, 2016:
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WeightedAverage
Grant Date
Fair Value

Number of
Shares
Unvested balance-December 31, 2015

4,361,833

Granted

3,072,443

$

2.66

Released

(1,943,934)

1.85

(979,662)

Forfeited/expired

4,510,680

Unvested balance-December 31, 2016

1.64

2.12
$

2.14

As of December 31, 2016, the unrecognized stock-based compensation cost related to RSUs, net of estimated forfeitures, was $8.0 million, which is
expected to be recognized over a weighted-average period of 2.6 years.
The majority of the RSUs that vested in the year ended December 31, 2016 were net-share settled such that the Company withheld shares with value
equivalent to the employees’ minimum statutory obligation for the applicable income and other employment taxes, and remitted the cash to the appropriate taxing
authorities. The total shares withheld were based on the value of the RSUs on their vesting date as determined by the Company’s closing stock price. These netshare settlements had the effect of share repurchases by the Company as they reduced and retired the number of shares that would have otherwise been issued as a
result of the vesting and did not represent an expense to the Company. For the year ended December 31, 2016, 1,943,934 shares of RSUs vested and the Company
withheld 701,823 shares to satisfy approximately $1.7 million of employees’ minimum tax obligation on the vested RSUs.
On July 19, 2016, the Company rescinded certain RSUs granted to Dr. Avi S. Katz, its Chief Executive Officer, as the total number of RSUs granted to Dr.
Katz in 2015 were in excess of the 1,000,000 share per calendar year per person award limit as required by the 2008 Plan. As a result, Dr. Katz offered to rescind
certain RSUs from two separate grants made to him in 2015, and the Company, upon the recommendation of the Compensation Committee of the Board of
Directors, (i) rescinded 401,250 shares of unvested RSUs and concurrently issued an equal number of RSUs with the same vesting term; and (ii) rescinded 60,106
shares of unvested RSUs and concurrently issued 39,121 shares of RSUs with the same vesting term as the rescinded grant but a reduced number of shares vesting
in each tranche as compared to the rescinded grant of RSUs. The Company accounted for the rescission and subsequent grant of RSUs to Dr. Katz as a
modification with no incremental fair value. As a result, the Company continued to record stock-based compensation expenses based on the original grant date fair
value prior to the modification, and no additional expense was recorded by the Company.
NOTE 10-BENEFIT PLANS
In connection with the Company’s Swiss subsidiary, the Company maintains a pension plan covering minimum requirements according to Swiss law. It has
set up the occupational benefits by means of an affiliation to a collective foundation, the Swisscanto Collective Foundation.
Funding Policy
The Company’s practice is to fund the pension plan in an amount at least sufficient to meet the minimum requirements of Swiss law.
Benefit Obligations and Plan Assets
The following tables summarize changes in the benefit obligation, the plan assets and the funded status of the pension benefit plan as well as the
components of net periodic benefit costs, including key assumptions (in thousands):
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Years Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Change in projected benefit obligation:
Beginning benefit obligation

$

781

$

822

Service cost

55

62

Interest cost

8

12

Plan participants contributions

18

23

Foreign exchange adjustments

(20)

(1)

51

(28)

(120)

(109)

Actuarial loss (gain)
Transfer in/(out)
Ending benefit obligation

$

773

$

781

$

432

$

496

Change in plan assets:
Beginning fair value of plan assets
Employer contributions

18

23

Plan participants' contributions

18

23

Foreign exchange adjustments

(11)

1

Expected return on plan assets

91

Transfer in/(out)

(2)

(120)

(109)

Ending fair value of plan assets

$

428

$

432

Benefits paid

$

—

$

—

The following table summarizes the funding status as of December 31, 2016 and 2015 (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Projected benefit obligation

$

2015
(773)

Fair value of plan assets

$

(781)

428
$

Funded status of the plan at the end of the year, recorded as a long-term liability

432

(345)

$

(349)

Assumptions
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine benefit obligations as of December 31, 2016 for the plan were a discount rate of 0.30%, a rate of
compensation increase of 2.00%, and an expected return on assets of 1.00%. The GigOptix-Helix Plan is reinsured with the Helvetia Swiss Life Insurance
Company via the Swisscanto Collective Foundation. The expected return on assets is derived as follows: Swiss pension law requires that the insurance company
pay an interest rate of at least 1.25% per annum on legal minimum old-age savings accounts.
Weighted-average assumptions used to determine costs for the plan as of December 31, 2015 were a discount rate of 1.00%, rate of compensation increase
of 2.00%, and expected return on assets of 1.00%.
Net Periodic Benefit Cost
The net periodic benefit cost for the plan included the following components (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Service cost (net)

2015

$

55

$

63

Interest cost

$

8

Net periodic benefit cost

The total net periodic pension cost for the year ending December 31, 2017 is expected to be approximately $66,000.
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62
12

$

74

The following are the components of estimated net periodic pension cost in 2017 (in thousands):
Year Ending
December 31, 2017
Service cost (net)

$

Interest cost

68
2

Expected return on plan assets

(4)
$

Net periodic benefit cost

66

Plan Assets
The benefits are fully insured. There are no retirees and the plan assets are equal to the sum of the old-age savings and of various other accounts within the
affiliation contract.
The allocation of the assets of the plan at the measurement dates were in cash, bonds, stocks, mutual funds, hedge funds, and commodities. The Company is
required by Swiss law to contribute to retirement funds for the employees of its Swiss subsidiary. Funds are managed by third parties according to statutory
guidelines. Cash equivalents may be valued using quoted prices in markets that are not active, resulting in a Level 2 fair value measurement within the hierarchy
set forth in the accounting guidance for fair value measurements.
Contributions
The Company anticipates contributions to the plan of approximately $23,000 in the year ending December 31, 2017. Actual contributions may differ from
expected contributions due to various factors, including performance of plan assets, interest rates and potential legislative changes. The Company is not able to
estimate expected contributions beyond fiscal year 2017.
Estimated Future Benefit Payments
The Company does not expect benefit payments through 2024.
Israel Severance Plan liability
Under Israeli law, the Company is required to make severance payments to its retired or dismissed Israeli employees and Israeli employees leaving its
employment in certain other circumstances. The Company’s severance pay liability to its Israeli employees is calculated based on the salary of each employee
multiplied by the number of years of such employee’s employment and is presented in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets, as if it was
payable at each balance sheet date on an undiscounted basis. This liability is partially funded by the purchase of insurance policies in the name of the employees.
The surrender value of the insurance policies of $10,000 is presented in other long-term assets on the consolidated balance sheets. There were no severance pay
expenses for the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015. As of December 31, 2016 and 2015, accrued severance liabilities were $12,000. As of December 31,
2016 and 2015, severance assets were $8,000 and $10,000, respectively.
GigPeak 401(k) Plan
The Company has a 401(k) retirement plan which was adopted by GigOptix LLC as of January 4, 2008. In December 2011, the GigOptix 401k plan merged
into the Endwave 401k plan and renamed as GigPeak 401k plan in April 2016. This plan is intended to be a qualified retirement plan under the Internal Revenue
Code. It is a defined contribution as opposed to a defined benefit plan. The Company made $86,000 and $71,000 matching contributions during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
GigOptix Terasquare Korea Defined Contribution Plan
The Company adopted a contribution pension plan for its Korean employees, where the Company pays fixed contributions to each employee who
participates in the plan each year. The Company has no further payment obligations once the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognized as
employee benefit expense when they are due. The total contribution made for the year ended December 31, 2016 was $51,000. The total contribution made for the
year 2015 since the acquisition of Terasquare on September 30, 2015 was $12,000.
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Magnum Canada Registered Retirement Savings Plan
The Company adopted a Registered Retirement Savings Plan (“RRSP”) for its Canada employees. The Company made $20,000 in matching contribution
for the year ended December 31, 2016 since the acquisition of Magnum Canada on April 5, 2016.
NOTE 11-INCOME TAXES
The components of income before provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
United States

$

2015

2,154

International

$

1,189

318
$

Income before provision for income taxes

2,472

130
$

1,319

Components of provision for income taxes are as follows (in thousands):
Years Ended December 31,
2016

2015

Current:
United States

$

83

$

20

International

67

37

State

20

10

Total

170

67

United States

69

—

International

—

—

Deferred:

Total

69
$

Provision for income taxes

239

—
$

67

Provision for income taxes differs from the amount computed by applying the statutory United States federal income tax rate to gain (loss) before taxes as
follows:
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Income tax at the federal statutory rate

34.00 %

State tax, net of federal benefit
Foreign tax rate differential
True-up and other
Permanent items and other
Losses not benefited
Effective tax rate
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2015
34.00 %

1.04 %

0.75 %

(2.83)%

(0.51)%

3.74 %

—%

3.34 %

1.48 %

(29.62)%

(30.73)%

9.67 %

4.99 %

The components of the net deferred tax assets and liabilities are as follows (in thousands):
December 31,
2016

2015

Deferred tax asset (liability), net
Net operating loss carry forwards

$

20,037

$

17,577

Tax credits

1,960

3,051

Accrued and reserves

6,461

2,575

Foreign deferred
Fixed assets
Other
Total deferred tax asset

—

—

905

824

2,587

2,222

31,950

26,249

Valuation allowance

(28,245)

(25,977)

Net deferred tax asset

3,705

Foreign intangibles and pension other comprehensive income
Intangible assets
Deferred tax liability

272

(296)

(318)

(3,764)

(272)

(4,060)
$

Net deferred tax liability

(355)

(590)
$

(318)

For the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, the deferred tax liability is included in other long-term liabilities on the consolidated balance sheets.
The Company has a full valuation allowance on its deferred tax assets in excess of deferred tax liabilities. Because of its limited operating history and
cumulative losses, management believes it is more likely than not that the remaining deferred tax assets will not be realized.
The Company’s valuation allowance increased by approximately $2.3 million and decreased by approximately $1.7 million during the years ended
December 31, 2016 and December 31, 2015, respectively.
The Company has approximately $47.3 million of federal net operating loss (“NOL”) carryforwards as of December 31, 2016. The NOLs expire beginning
in 2027. The Company has approximately $1.5 million of federal research and development (“R&D”) tax credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2016. The
federal tax credit carryforwards expire through 2036. The Company has approximately $32.5 million of state NOL carryforwards as of December 31, 2016. The
NOLs expire through 2036. The Company has approximately $3.7 million of state R&D tax credit carryforwards as of December 31, 2016. The state R&D tax
credits do not expire. Utilization of a portion of the NOL and credit carryforwards are subject to an annual limitation due to the ownership change provision of the
IRC of 1986, as amended, and similar state provisions. The annual limitation may result in the expiration of NOLs and credits before utilization. The Company
also has approximately $13.2 million of NOL carryforwards in Israel related to its acquisition of ChipX. The losses in that jurisdiction can be carried forward
indefinitely.
Any interest and penalties incurred on the settlement of outstanding tax positions would be recorded as a component of income tax expense. The Company
recorded $47,000 and $14,000 of interest and penalty expenses during the years ended December 31, 2016 and 2015, respectively.
The Company’s unrecognized tax benefits as of December 31, 2016 relate to various domestic and foreign jurisdictions. As of December 31, 2016, the
Company had total gross unrecognized tax benefits of $8.5 million, which if recognized would affect the effective interest rate. As of December 31, 2016 and
2015, the amount of long-term income taxes payable for unrecognized tax benefits, including accrued interest, was $977,000 and $434,000, respectively.
A reconciliation of the beginning and ending amount of unrecognized tax benefits is as follows (in thousands):
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Total
Balance as of December 31, 2014

$

3,004

Increases related to current year tax positions

181

Increases related to prior year tax positions

—

Decreases related to prior year tax positions

(94)

Balance as of December 31, 2015

3,091

Increases related to current year tax positions

574

Increases related to prior year tax positions-acquisition

4,809

Increases related to prior year tax positions

—

Decreases related to prior year tax positions

—
$

Balance as of December 31, 2016

8,474

The Company files tax returns in the U.S. federal, U.S. state and foreign tax jurisdictions. The Company’s major tax jurisdictions are the U.S., California,
Switzerland, Korea, Japan, Canada, China and Israel. The Company’s fiscal years through 2016 remain subject to examination by the tax authorities for U.S.
federal, U.S. state and foreign tax purpose.
NOTE 12-NET INCOME PER SHARE
The computations for basic and diluted net income per share are as follows (in thousands, except per share data):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
Net income

$

Weighted-average common shares used in basic net income per share

2015
2,233

$

1,249

58,713

36,624

Stock options

1,631

876

RSUs

1,063

612

5

2

61,412

38,114

Effect of dilutive securities:

Warrants
Weighted-average common shares used in diluted net income per share
Net income per share - basic

$

0.04

$

0.03

Net income per share - diluted

$

0.04

$

0.03

The following table summarizes total securities outstanding which were not included in the calculation of diluted net income per share because to do so
would have been anti-dilutive:
December 31,
Stock options and RSUs
Common stock warrants
Total

2016

2015

6,279,602

3,986,961

125,000

156,573

6,404,602

4,143,534

NOTE 13-SEGMENT AND GEOGRAPHIC INFORMATION
The Company’s chief operating decision maker is its Chief Executive Officer. The chief operating decision maker reviews financial information presented
on a consolidated basis for purposes of allocating resources and evaluating financial performance. Accordingly, the Company has determined that it operates as a
single operating and reportable segment.
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The following table summarizes revenue by geographic region (in thousands, except percentages):
Years Ended December 31,
2016
North America

$

2015

28,577

49%

13,468

33%

Asia

15,428

26%

14,125

35%

Europe

14,738

25%

12,143

30%

—

—%

658

2%

58,743

100%

40,394

100%

Rest of World
$

Total

$

$

The Company determines geographic location of its revenue based upon the destination of shipments of its products.
The following table summarizes long-lived assets by geography (in thousands, except percentages):
December 31,
2016
Americas

$

Europe
Asia
$

Total

2015

3,299

86%

422

11%

119

3%

3,840

100%

$

$

2,680

85%

435

14%

18

1%

3,133

100%

Long-lived assets, comprised of property and equipment, net are reported based on the location of the assets at each balance sheet date.
NOTE 14-SUBSEQUENT EVENTS
On February 13, 2017, the Company entered into an Agreement and Plan of Merger (the “Merger Agreement”) with Integrated Device Technology, Inc.
(“IDT”) and IDT’s wholly-owned subsidiary Glider Merger Sub, Inc. (the “Purchaser”), Pursuant to the terms of the Merger Agreement, Purchaser made a tender
offer to acquire all of the outstanding shares of the Company’s common and associated purchase rights for the Company’s Series A Junior Preferred Stock
(collectively the “Shares”) on March 7, 2017 (the “Offer”). The Offer is scheduled to expire one minute following 11:59 P.M. (12:00 midnight) New York Time,
on Monday April 3, 2017, unless the Offer is extended or terminated.
The Merger Agreement provides that, among other things, subject to the satisfaction or waiver of certain conditions, following completion of the Offer, and
in accordance with the Delaware General Corporation Law, as amended (the “DGCL”), Purchaser will be merged with and into the Company (the “Merger”)
(collectively, the Offer, the Merger, and the transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement constitute the “Transaction”). Following the consummation of the
Merger, the Company will continue as the surviving corporation and as a wholly-owned subsidiary of IDT. The Merger will be governed by Section 251(h) of the
DGCL which provides that, as soon as practicable following consummation of a successful tender offer for the outstanding voting stock of a corporation whose
shares are listed on a national securities exchange, and subject to certain statutory provisions, if the acquiror holds at least the amount of shares of each class or
series of stock of the acquired corporation that would otherwise be required to adopt a merger agreement providing for the merger of the acquired corporation, and
each outstanding share of each class or series of stock of the acquired corporation subject to, but not tendered in, the tender offer is subsequently converted by
virtue of such a merger into, or into the right to receive, the same amount and kind of consideration for their stock in the merger as was payable in the tender offer,
the acquiror can effect such a merger without any vote of the stockholders of the acquired corporation. Accordingly, if Purchaser consummates the Offer, the
Merger Agreement contemplates that the parties thereto will affect the closing of the Merger without a vote of the stockholders of GigPeak in accordance with
Section 251(h) of the DGCL.
The obligation of Purchaser to purchase the Shares validly tendered pursuant to the Offer and not validly withdrawn prior to the expiration of the Offer is
subject to the satisfaction or waiver of a number of conditions set forth in the Merger Agreement, including (i) that there will have been validly tendered and not
validly withdrawn a number of Shares that, when added to the Shares then owned by IDT and its wholly-owned direct or indirect subsidiaries, represents at least a
majority of the Shares then outstanding (on a fully-diluted basis) and no less than a majority of the voting power of the shares of capital stock of GigPeak then
outstanding (on a fully-diluted basis) and entitled to vote upon the adoption of the Merger Agreement and the approval of the Merger, excluding from the number
of tendered Shares, but not from the number of outstanding Shares, Shares tendered pursuant to guaranteed delivery procedures, to the extent such procedures are
permitted by Purchaser, that have not yet been delivered in settlement of such guarantee, (ii) the expiration or termination of any applicable waiting period (and
any extension thereof) and the receipt of any approval or clearance applicable to the Offer or consummation of the Merger under the Hart-Scott-Rodino Antitrust
Improvements Act of 1976, as amended, (iii) the accuracy of the representations and warranties and compliance with covenants contained in the Merger
Agreement, subject to certain materiality standards,
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(iv) the absence of any law, order, injunction or decree by any government, court or other governmental entity that would make illegal or otherwise prohibit the
Offer or the Merger, (v) there not having been a material adverse effect with respect to GigPeak, and (vi) other customary conditions.
In connection with the Merger Agreement, the members of the Board of Directors of the Company entered into a Tender and Support Agreement (the
“Tender and Support Agreement”) with the Purchaser pursuant to which the members of the Board of Directors have agreed to tender their shares of the
Company’s common stock in the Offer and to support the Merger and the other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement.
Upon the occurrence of certain termination events, the Company may be required to pay IDT a breakup fee and/or expense reimbursement.
In connection with the Company’s entry into the Merger Agreement, the Company entered into Amendment No. 1 to the Rights Agreement, dated February
10, 2017 (the “Rights Amendment”), amending the Amended Rights Agreement. The effect of the Rights Amendment is to permit the Offer, the Merger and the
other transactions contemplated by the Merger Agreement. The Rights Amendment provides that: (i) neither IDT nor the Purchaser nor any of their respective
affiliates shall be deemed to be an Acquiring Person (as such term is defined in the Amended Rights Agreement), (ii) neither a Distribution Date nor a Stock
Acquisition Date (as each such term is defined in the Amended Rights Agreement) shall be deemed to have occurred, and the Rights (as such term is defined in the
Amended Rights Agreement) will not detach from the shares of common stock or become non-redeemable, as a result of the execution, delivery or performance of
the Merger Agreement, the Offer and/or the Merger, including the acquisition of shares of common stock pursuant thereto, the Tender and Support Agreements
entered into in conjunction with the Merger Agreement or any other transaction contemplated by the Merger Agreement and (iii) the Rights (as such term is
defined in the Amended Rights Agreement) and the Amended Rights Agreement shall expire and terminate immediately prior to the acceptance time for the Offer.
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Exhibit 99.3
REPORT OF INDEPENDENT REGISTERED PUBLIC ACCOUNTING FIRM
To the Board of Directors and Stockholders of GigPeak, Inc.
We have audited the accompanying consolidated balance sheets of GigPeak, Inc. (a Delaware Corporation) and its subsidiaries (the “Company”) as of December
31, 2016 and 2015, and the related consolidated statements of operations, comprehensive income, stockholders’ equity, and cash flows for each of the two years in
the period ended December 31, 2016. These consolidated financial statements are the responsibility of the Company’s management. Our responsibility is to express
an opinion on these consolidated financial statements based on our audits.
We conducted our audits in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States). Those standards require that we
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit includes examining,
on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and
significant estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audits provide a reasonable basis
for our opinion.
In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the financial position of GigPeak, Inc. and its
subsidiaries as of December 31, 2016 and 2015, and the results of their operations and their cash flows for each of the two years in the period ended December 31,
2016 in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America.
We also have audited, in accordance with the standards of the Public Company Accounting Oversight Board (United States), the Company’s internal control over
financial reporting as of December 31, 2016, based on criteria established in Internal Control-Integrated Framework (2013 Framework) issued by the Committee of
Sponsoring Organizations of the Treadway Commission, and our report dated March 15, 2017, expressed an unqualified opinion thereon.
/s/ BPM LLP
San Jose, California
March 15, 2017

Exhibit 99.4
INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
On April 4, 2017, Integrated Device Technology, Inc., a Delaware corporation (the “Company” or “IDT”) completed its previously announced acquisition
of GigPeak, Inc. (“GigPeak”), pursuant to the terms of the definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 13, 2017 (the “Merger Agreement”), by
and among IDT, Glider Merger Sub, Inc., a Delaware corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of IDT and GigPeak (the “Acquisition”).
The following unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements are based on the historical consolidated financial statements of IDT and
GigPeak after giving effect to the Acquisition and applying the assumptions and adjustments described in the accompanying notes. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined balance sheet has been prepared to reflect the Acquisition as if the Acquisition had occurred on April 2, 2017. The unaudited pro forma
condensed combined statement of operations combines the results of operations of IDT and GigPeak for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2017 and December 31,
2016, respectively, as if the Acquisition had occurred on April 4, 2016.
As IDT has a fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to March 31 and GigPeak has a fiscal year ending on December 31, the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined balance sheet combines the historical balances of IDT as of April 2, 2017 with the historical balances of GigPeak as of December 31, 2016, plus pro
forma adjustments. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations combines the historical results of IDT for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 2017 with the historical results of GigPeak for the year ended December 31, 2016, plus pro forma adjustments.
Pursuant to the purchase method of accounting, the purchase price paid by IDT in connection with the Acquisition has been preliminarily allocated to
assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their respective fair values. IDT’s management has determined the preliminary fair value of the intangible assets
and tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed at the pro forma combined balance sheet date. Any differences between the fair value of the consideration
issued and the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded as goodwill. Since these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial
statements have been prepared based on preliminary estimates of fair values, the actual amounts recorded may differ materially from the information presented.
The pro forma condensed combined financial statements are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the financial
position or results of operations that would have been realized if the Acquisition had been completed on the dates indicated, nor are they indicative of future
operating results or financial position.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not reflect:
• the costs to integrate the operations of IDT and GigPeak;
• any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the Acquisition; or
• the costs necessary to achieve any such cost savings, operating synergies and revenue enhancements.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements should be read in conjunction with (a) the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial statements, (b) GigPeak’s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto filed herewith and (c) IDT’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2017 and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED BALANCE SHEET AS OF APRIL 2, 2017
(In thousands)
IDT
Historical April
2, 2017

Pro Forma
Adjustments
(Note 5)

GigPeak Historical
December 31, 2016

Pro Forma
Combined

Assets:
Current assets:
Cash and cash equivalents

$

214,554

$

35,757

$

(73,145)

a,k

$

177,166

Short-term investments

191,492

—

—

Accounts receivable, net

89,312

15,258

392

Inventories

52,288

13,687

8,839

Prepayments and other current assets (1)

13,054

658

(154)

560,700

65,360

(64,068)

80,961

3,840

(1,112)

e,l

83,689

Goodwill

306,925

42,977

59,049

f

408,951

Intangible assets, net

108,818

26,717

70,912

d,g

206,447

85,831

—

9,462

h,o

95,293

—

87

Total current assets
Property, plant and equipment, net

Deferred tax assets
Restricted cash
Other assets

40,399

Total assets

1,454

191,492
b

104,962

c

74,814

d

13,558
561,992

(87)

i

87

i

—
41,940

$

1,183,634

$

140,435

$

74,243

$

1,398,312

$

42,020

$

7,093

$

—

$

49,113

Liabilities and stockholders' equity
Current liabilities:
Accounts payable
Accrued compensation and related expenses (2)

26,624

Deferred income on shipments to distributors

3,166

1,985

—

Note payable, current

—

2,898

Current portion of bank loan

—

Other accrued liabilities (3)
Total current liabilities
Deferred tax liabilities
Convertible notes

—
—

1,985

(2,898)

j

—

—

2,000

k

2,000

20,205

2,872

1,122

d,j

90,834

16,029

224

24,199
107,087

13,835

—

—

13,835

285,541

—

—

285,541

867

—

—

9,853

(9,853)

Long-term bank loan, net
Long-term income tax payable

29,790

Note payable, net of current portion
Pension liabilities

192,180

k

192,180

977

m

1,844

j

—

—

345

(345)

n

18,894

3,896

(88)

d,m,n,o

Total liabilities

409,971

30,123

Common stock

133

69

(69)

p

2,685,649

213,557

(210,157)

q

2,689,049

p

(1,616,315)

p

(6,785)

Other long-term liabilities

Additional paid-in capital
Treasury stock at cost

(1,616,315)

Accumulated and other comprehensive income (loss)
Accumulated deficit
$

1,183,634

4,972

440

(289,019)

Total liabilities and stockholders' equity

183,095

(4,972)

(6,785)

(440)

(98,782)
$

140,435

96,842
$

74,243

(1) Presented as "Prepaid and other current assets" in GigPeak Form 10-K as of December 31, 2016
(2) Presented as "Accrued compensation" in GigPeak Form 10-K as of December 31, 2016
(3) Presented as "Other current liabilities" in GigPeak Form 10-K as of December 31, 2016

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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—
22,702
623,189
133

r

(290,959)
$

1,398,312

INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS
FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED APRIL 2, 2017
(In thousands, except per share amounts)
IDT Historical
Year Ended
April 2, 2017
Revenues

$

GigPeak Historical
Year Ended
December 31, 2016

728,243

$

58,743

Pro Forma
Adjustments
(Note 5)
$

Pro Forma
Combined

—

$
A,B

786,986

Cost of revenues

307,605

18,730

9,307

Gross profit

420,638

40,013

(9,307)

335,642

Research and development

165,104

20,314

229

B,C

185,647

Selling, general and administrative

B,D

164,873

451,344

Operating expenses:
145,193

16,336

3,344

Total operating expenses

310,297

36,650

3,573

Operating income

110,341

3,363

(12,880)

Interest expense

(16,878)

(674)

(8,536)

E

(26,088)

5,822

(217)

(609)

F

4,996

G

(16,112)

Interest income (expense) and other, net (1)
Income before income taxes from continuing operations

99,285

Income tax expense (benefit)

(9,899)

Net income from continuing operations

350,520
100,824

2,472

(22,025)

239

(6,452)

79,732

109,184

2,233

(15,573)

1,385

—

—

1,385

87

—

—

87

95,844

Discontinued operations:
Gain from divestiture
Income tax expense
Net income from discontinued operations

1,298

Net income

$

110,482

Basic net income per share - continuing operations

$

0.82

Basic net income per share - discontinued operations

—
$

2,233

—
$

(15,573)

1,298
$

97,142

$

0.72

0.01

0.01

Basic net income per share

$

0.83

$

0.73

Diluted net income per share - continuing operations

$

0.79

$

0.70

Diluted net income per share - discontinued operations
Diluted net income per share

0.01
$

0.80

0.01
$

0.71

Weighted average shares:
Basic

133,817

133,817

Diluted

137,440

137,596

(1) Presented as "Other expense, net" in GigPeak Form 10-K as of December 31, 2016

See accompanying notes to unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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INTEGRATED DEVICE TECHNOLOGY, INC.
NOTES TO UNAUDITED PRO FORMA CONDENSED COMBINED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
(All tabular dollar amounts in millions except per share amounts)

Note 1. Description of Transaction
On April 4, 2017 ("Acquisition Date"), pursuant to the terms of the definitive Agreement and Plan of Merger, dated as of February 13, 2017 (the “Merger
Agreement”), by and among Integrated Device Technology, Inc. (“IDT”), a Delaware corporation (the "Company" or "IDT"), Glider Merger Sub, Inc, a Delaware
corporation and wholly-owned subsidiary of IDT (the "Acquisition Sub"), and GigPeak, Inc., a Delaware corporation (“GigPeak”), the Acquisition Sub completed
its purchase of all of the outstanding common stock, par value of $0.001 per share, of GigPeak, in an all-cash transaction for approximately $250 million (the
"Acquisition"). Pursuant to the Merger Agreement, Acquisition Sub merged with and into GigPeak, with GigPeak continuing as the surviving corporation and as a
wholly-owned subsidiary of IDT.
IDT funded the acquisition from its available cash on hand and net proceeds from borrowing under its credit facility entered into on April 4, 2017 with
JPMorgan Chase Bank, N.A. as administrative agent and the various lenders signatory thereto (the “Credit Agreement”). The Credit Agreement provides for a
$200 million term loan facility (the "Initial Term B Loan"). In addition, the Company may request incremental term loan and/or incremental revolving loan
commitments in an aggregate amount not to exceed the sum of $200 million and an unlimited amount that is subject to pro forma compliance with certain secured
leverage ratio test; provided, however that incremental revolving loan commitments may not exceed $50 million.
Note 2. Basis of Pro Forma Presentation
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements are based on the historical consolidated financial statements of IDT and GigPeak after
giving effect to the Acquisition using the purchase method of accounting in accordance with Accounting Standards Codification (“ASC”) Topic 805, Business
Combinations, and applying the assumptions and adjustments described in these notes, however portions of the preliminary allocation are dependent upon certain
valuations and other studies that have yet to commence or progress to a stage where there is sufficient information for a definitive measurement. The unaudited pro
forma condensed combined balance sheet is presented as if the Acquisition had occurred on April 2, 2017. The unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement
of operations for the year ended April 2, 2017 is presented as if the Acquisition had occurred on April 4, 2016.
As IDT has a fiscal year ending on the Sunday closest to March 31 and GigPeak has a fiscal year ending on December 31, the unaudited pro forma condensed
combined balance sheet combines the historical balances of IDT as of April 2, 2017 with the historical balances of GigPeak as of December 31, 2016, plus pro
forma adjustments. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations combines the historical results of IDT for the fiscal year
ended April 2, 2017 with the historical results of GigPeak for the year ended December 31, 2016, plus pro forma adjustments.
ASC Topic 820, Fair Value Measurement , defines the term “fair value” as “the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to transfer a liability in
an orderly transaction between market participants at the measurement date.” In addition, market participants are assumed to be buyers and sellers in the principal
(or the most advantageous) market for the asset or liability. Fair value measurements for an asset assume the highest and best use by these market participants. As a
result of these standards, IDT may be required to record assets which are not intended to be used or sold and/or to value assets at fair value measures that do not
reflect IDT’s intended use of those assets. Many of these fair value measurements can be highly subjective and it is also possible that other professionals, applying
reasonable judgment to the same facts and circumstances, could develop and support a range of alternative estimated amounts.
Pursuant to the purchase method of accounting, the purchase price has been preliminarily allocated to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on their
respective fair values. IDT’s management has determined the preliminary fair value of the intangible assets and tangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed at
the unaudited pro forma condensed combined balance sheet date. Any differences between the fair value of the consideration paid and the fair value of the assets
acquired and liabilities assumed are recorded as goodwill. Since these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements have been prepared based on
preliminary estimates of fair values, the actual amounts recorded may differ materially from the information presented. These changes could result in material
variances between the Company’s future financial results and the amounts presented in these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements,
including variances in fair values recorded, as well as expenses and cash flows associated with these items. There were no intercompany transactions between IDT
and GigPeak as of the dates and for the periods of these unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
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The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements have been prepared in a manner consistent with the accounting policies and presentation
adopted by IDT in conformity with generally accepted accounting principles in the United States of America. Details of pro forma adjustments are described in
Note 5 below.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements are presented for illustrative purposes only and are not necessarily indicative of the
financial position or results of operations that would have been realized if the Acquisition had been completed on the dates indicated, nor are they indicative of
future operating results or financial position. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are directly attributable to the Acquisition and are factually supportable. Any
nonrecurring items directly attributable to the Acquisition are included in the pro forma balance sheet but not in the unaudited pro forma statement of operations. In
contrast, any nonrecurring items that were already included in IDT’s or GigPeak’s historical consolidated financial statements that are not related to the
Acquisition have not been eliminated. In addition, the unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations adjustments give effect to only those
matters that are expected to have a continuing impact on the operating results of the combined company. The unaudited pro forma adjustments are based upon
available information and certain assumptions that IDT believes are reasonable.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements do not reflect:
• the costs to integrate the operations of IDT and GigPeak;
• any cost savings, operating synergies or revenue enhancements that the combined company may achieve as a result of the Acquisition; or
• the costs necessary to achieve any such cost savings, operating synergies and revenue enhancements.
The unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements should be read in conjunction with (a) the accompanying notes to the unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial statements (b) GigPeak’s historical consolidated financial statements and notes thereto filed herewith and (c) IDT’s Annual Report
on Form 10-K for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2017 and other filings with the Securities and Exchange Commission.

Note 3. Preliminary Estimated Acquisition Consideration
The preliminary fair value of consideration to acquire GigPeak was approximately $250.1 million and consisted of the following:
(in thousands)

Amount

Cash consideration to GigPeak’s shareholders

$

Preliminary fair value of unvested equity awards related to pre-combination services

3,400
$

Total preliminary estimated acquisition consideration

246,717
250,117

Term B Loan:
IDT partially funded the transaction with the net proceeds from its $200 million term loan facility. On April 4, 2017, certain subsidiaries of IDT and a
group of lenders entered into the Credit Agreement that, among other things, provides for variable rate term loans in aggregate principal amount of $200 million,
with an original term of 7 years. IDT received net proceeds from the Initial Term B Loan of approximately $194.2 million after payment of transaction costs
associated with the Credit Agreement. The transaction costs are accounted for as debt issuance costs which will be recorded as a reduction of the carrying value of
the loan and amortized as a component of interest expense over the term of the Credit Agreement.
The maturity date of the Initial Term B Loan is April 4, 2024; provided that if any of the Company's Convertible Notes are outstanding on August 16,
2022, the maturity date of which had not otherwise been extended to a date that is no earlier than 91 days after April 4, 2024, the Initial Term B Loan maturity date
shall instead be August 16, 2022, unless the Company and its guarantors shall have cash, permitted investments and/or unwithdrawn revolving credit commitments
in an aggregate amount not less than the aggregate principal amount of then outstanding Convertible Notes. The Company may prepay the Initial Term B Loan, in
whole or in part, at any time without premium or penalty, subject to certain conditions, and amounts repaid or prepaid may not be reborrowed. The interest rate of
the Initial Term B Loan is based on adjusted LIBO rate which is equal to the LIBO rate for such interest period multiplied by statutory reserve rate, plus an
applicable margin of 3%. For the initial three-month period through June 30, 2017, the interest rate on the Initial Term B Loan is approximately 4.15%.
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GigPeak equity awards assumed:
In connection with the Acquisition, IDT assumed unvested restricted stock units (“RSUs”) originally granted by GigPeak and converted them into IDT
RSUs. IDT included $3.4 million, representing the estimated portion of the fair value of the assumed GigPeak unvested equity awards associated with service
rendered through the date of the Acquisition, as a component of the total preliminary estimated acquisition consideration. As of April 4, 2017, the total
unrecognized stock-based compensation expense, net of estimated forfeitures, was also $3.4 million, which is expected to be recognized over the remaining
weighted average service period of 2.6 years.
Note 4. Preliminary Estimated Purchase Price Allocation
The total purchase price has been allocated on a preliminary basis to assets acquired and liabilities assumed based on management’s preliminary estimates
of fair value. Management is still in the process of evaluating the assets acquired and liabilities assumed. The allocations made are subject to change pending a
final analysis of the fair value of the assets acquired and liabilities assumed, which could result in material changes from the information presented. This
assessment may result in fair values that are materially different than the preliminary estimates of these amounts.
The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair value of tangible and intangible assets acquired and liabilities assumed as of the date of
Acquisition:
(in thousands)

Fair Value

Cash and cash equivalents

$

17,089

Accounts receivable, net

15,650

Inventories

22,526

Prepayments and other current assets

504

Deferred tax assets

9,462

Intangible assets, net

97,629

Property, plant and equipment, net

2,728

Goodwill

102,026

Other assets

1,541

Accounts payable

(7,093)

Accrued compensation and related expenses

(3,166)

Other accrued liabilities

(3,994)

Long-term income tax payable

(977)

Other long-term liabilities

(3,808)
$

Fair value of net assets acquired

250,117

The goodwill is primarily attributable to the assembled workforce of GigPeak and synergies and economies of scale expected from combining the operations
of IDT and GigPeak. Because the Acquisition was structured as a stock acquisition for income tax purposes, none of the asset step-up or asset recognition required
by purchase accounting, including the goodwill described above, is deductible for tax purposes.
The following table summarizes the preliminary estimated fair value of the intangible assets, net acquired and their estimated useful lives as of the date of
Acquisition:
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Estimated
Fair Value
(in thousands)
Developed technology

$

Customer contracts and related relationships

Estimated
Useful Life

55,900

5 years

29,300

5 years

Order backlog

200

Software licenses

2,229

In-process research and development ("IPR&D")

1 year
less than a year

10,000
$

Total

97,629

The preliminary estimates of fair value and useful life will likely be different from the final acquisition accounting, and the difference could have a
material impact on the accompanying unaudited pro forma condensed combined financial statements.
IPR&D represents the fair value of incomplete research and development projects that had not reached technology feasibility as of the date of Acquisition.
The acquisition date fair value of IPR&D projects will be either amortized or impaired depending on whether the project is completed or abandoned.
Note 5. Preliminary Unaudited Pro Forma Financial Statement Adjustments
Adjustments included in the column under the heading “Pro Forma Adjustments” represent the following:
Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Balance Sheet
Pro forma Adjustments:
a. Cash – The components of pro forma adjustment to reflect IDT’s use of cash to purchase GigPeak are as follows:
Cash used as purchase consideration

$

Payment of GigPeak's outstanding note payable including accrued interest

(233,912)
(12,805)

Payment of IDT's transaction costs

(1,940)

Payment of Gigpeak's transaction costs - change-in-control payments

(18,668)
$

(267,325)

b. Adjustment in accounts receivable representing unbilled royalty revenue

$

392

c. Preliminary adjustment for step-up in fair value of inventory acquired from GigPeak

$

8,839

d. To record intangible assets on GigPeak's software license agreements
To reclassify carrying balance of prepaid software licenses from prepayment and other current assets to intangible assets, net

$

To record intangible assets for future contractual amounts and from reclassification of prepaid software licenses

$

2,229

To record current portion of liability for future contractual amounts, to other accrued liabilities

$

1,176

To record long-term portion of liability for future contractual amounts, to other long-term liabilities

$

e. Adjustments in fixed assets to align with IDT's capitalization policy

$

(154)

899
(1,377)

f. Goodwill - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's existing goodwill

$

To record estimated goodwill associated with the GigPeak acquisition

(42,977)
102,026

$

59,049

$

(26,717)

g. Intangibles assets, net - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's existing intangible assets
To record estimated fair value of GigPeak's identifiable intangible assets

95,400
$

7

68,683

h. Historically, GigPeak had maintained a full valuation allowance against U.S. net deferred tax assets. IDT has recorded a deferred tax
liability related to the intangible assets acquired as part of the GigPeak acquisition. For purposes of these unaudited pro forma
condensed combined financial statements, the deferred tax liability and IDT's income are considered a source of income to recognize
the US federal deferred tax asset on GigPeak’s historical financial statements, accordingly, the net deferred tax asset is being
recognized.

$

i. Conforming reclassification - To reclass restricted cash to other assets as of December 31, 2016

$

9,817
(87)

j. Note payable and accrued interest - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's note payable, current portion due to debt repayment

$

To eliminate GigPeak's note payable, noncurrent portion due to debt repayment

2,898
9,853

To eliminate the accrued interest due to debt repayment

54
$

12,805

$

200,000

k. To reflect the Initial Term B Loan issued to partially finance the purchase consideration:
Principal amount
Debt issuance costs

(5,820)
$

Net proceeds from Initial Term B Loan

194,180

Classified as follows :
Current portion of bank loan

$

Bank loan, long-term

2,000
192,180

$

194,180

l. Adjustment for step-up in fair value of property, plant and equipment, net acquired from GigPeak

$

265

m. Conforming reclassification - To reclass unrecognized tax benefits to long-term income tax payable from other long-term liabilities as
of December 31, 2016

$

977

n. Conforming reclassification - To reclass pension liabilities to other long-term liabilities as of December 31, 2016

$

345

o. Conforming reclassification - To reclass deferred tax liabilities to deferred tax assets from other long-term liabilities as of December
31, 2016

$

(355)

To eliminate GigPeak's common stock

$

(69)

To eliminate GigPeak's treasury stock

$

To eliminate GigPeak's accumulated other comprehensive income

$

(440)

$

(213,557)

p. Equity - The following adjustments were recorded to the respective equity accounts:
4,972

q. Additional paid-in capital - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's additional paid-in capital
Preliminary estimated fair value of unvested equity awards related to pre-combination services

3,400
$

(210,157)

$

98,782

$

96,842

r. Accumulated deficit - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's accumulated deficit
To record IDT's transaction costs

(1,940)
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Unaudited Pro Forma Condensed Combined Statement of Operations
Pro forma Adjustments:
A. Cost of revenues - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's stock-based compensation expense

$

(293)

$

(192)

To record amortization of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to replacement awards

101

B. Amortization of intangible assets – The components of this adjustment are as follows:
Cost of revenues:
To record amortization of identified intangibles acquired from GigPeak

$

To eliminate historical amortization from the acquisition related intangibles

11,180
(1,681)

$

9,499

Research and development :
To eliminate historical amortization from the acquisition related intangibles

$

(391)

Selling, general and administrative :
To record amortization of identified intangibles acquired from GigPeak

$

To eliminate historical amortization from the acquisition related intangibles

6,060
(764)

$

5,296

C. Research and development – The components of this adjustment are as follows:
Adjustments in fixed assets to align with IDT's capitalization policy

$

To eliminate GigPeak's stock-based compensation expense

1,377
(1,195)

To record amortization of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to replacement awards

438
$

620

D. Selling, general and administrative - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
To eliminate GigPeak's stock-based compensation expense

$

(3,099)

$

(1,952)

$

8,300

To record amortization of unrecognized stock-based compensation expense related to replacement awards

1,147

E. Interest expense - The components of this adjustment are as follows:
Interest expense resulting from the issuance of Initial Term B Loan to partially finance the acquisition
Amortization of the debt issuance costs

831

To eliminate GigPeak's interest expense for the year ended December 31, 2016

(595)
$

8,536

$

52,030

F. The Acquisition was partially funded through the use of approximately $52.0 million of cash held by IDT at the time of acquisition. An
adjustment was made to reduce interest income by an estimated amount of interest income that will be lost because of lower invested
fund balances. A 1.17% rate of return was assumed based upon recent yields earned by IDT.
Cash used
Interest rate

1.17%
$

Interest income for the fiscal year ended April 2, 2017

G. Adjustments to record the preliminary tax benefit on the pro-forma adjusted pre-tax loss of GigPeak. The effective tax rate of the
combined company could be significantly different (either higher or lower) depending on post-acquisition activities, including
repatriation decisions, cash needs and the geographical mix of income.
$
9

609

(6,452)

6. Pro Forma Net Income per Share
The pro forma basic and diluted net income per share presented in our unaudited pro forma condensed combined statement of operations is computed based
on the weighted-average number of shares outstanding.
Year Ended April 2,
2017
Net income from continuing operations, basic and diluted

$

Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding, basic

95,844
133,817

Net effect of dilutive equity awards

3,779

Pro forma weighted average shares outstanding, diluted

137,596

Pro forma net income from continuing operations per share:
Basic

$

0.72

Diluted

$

0.70
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